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Feople usually have cne of two sttitudes about ancestors. The first
is found in the members of eertlh'ynw:c orgarizations, in the
Mctlﬁocietiu, and in the bosams of our maiden aunts. They belorg
totbecnltm:lchmindffeet;. wmmcemnmestrytosmb@ymo
had a title, held a camission, fa;dlt in & var, or arrived sameplace before
anybody else, therefore, we are "better" than other people who camnot (or
have aot bothered toi trace their encestry to samebody of equal 3ignificance.

This cult {8 frivolous and ebsurd. It sometimes leads its devotees
into silly traps. Qpe such well meaning lady contributed a biographical. skatch
of her ancestors to a local history in one of our southern states. A large
partdhushtchmsdevotedtothepraiseda:eparticuimamestor‘
whom she felt to be particularly patriotic, and since he was one of the
earliest settlers in the county he was doubly noble in hé eyes. Jn another
section of the same local history cne of the origimal settlers contributed
his recqlloctions of the early days. He spent a large part of his contri-
bution talking sbout the lady's "patriotic” ancestor in his role as the
county bully: Both attributes may have deen true, but the latter Is certaialy
& more familiar quality than the lady's samswhat artificiel "patriotisnm."

The cult also has other difficulties. For example, the averzg: person
today is descended from 64 people who were alive at the time of the imerican
Revolution. Among those 6l there was, in all probability, quitc & runge in
IQ, social status, education, character, and persomality. It is har
to believe that anybody could not £ind one "distinguished' ancestor sui cf Ok




chances. To carry this same line of resscning & bit farther we find that,
btbmntlmt,mbodyuthnritishmestors is descended frar
mmnvedmﬂmuhnddmmenmamagenmum
ago- ‘hothumds, ycunighttraceymmestryhcktommmthe
Conguercr, but there is also an eyusl chance forywtobedescended from
everybody else, Saxon, Normen, Welsh, and Scot, who vas alive at the time

of the Battle of Hastings. This theoretical chance probably doesn't bappen
very often because it would mesn that cur intermediate ancestors would nave
hed to move arcund a lot to avoid crossing limes of inheritence. The chasces
are actually strongly in favor of considerable intermerriage amarg reople
4rm the same locality, or from the same cultural groups, but the mcthemmtics
at least demonstrates the absurdity of the ancestor culs.

As frivolous as the cult may be, however, it at least recognizes in a
distorted way that there is a relationship between vhat 'we are today and
wbat our parents, grandparents, etc., were befora us. Tris relsticiship, i¥
proper]ymderstood, might be useful to us ir understanding our own mores
and standards of valus. It might elso, like amy study of history, lelp us
to appiy lessons of the past to the decisions we will have to make in the

future. This is the point that the people miss who have the anti-encestor

attitude. This second group, smarting agairnst the snobishness of ;he ancestor
cult, says in effect--"everybody has ancestors, but who cares? Ve ere what wve
are and we are as gocd as anybody else.” Such ar attitude is mrich more
useful for ordipmary living than that of the cultists. It avoids wacting time
and money in non-productive effort, but it has other faults.




" The anti-encestor attitudes is, in & semse, an uﬁti-imllectml attitude.
Tt 1s @ deliberate denial of curiosity sbout the most fascinating subject iz
the wvorld, the human race. Rmbﬁcmmttbu‘mbe
significance to the questicns, "lbere did we come fron?!" and "Why are we like
we are?” It denies that the present and the future can be Judged betuer if put
into context with the emtire flow of human growth and dsvelopment.

Tn spite of the mathematical absurdity of ancestor bunting, there is
a definite point to the study of family history. It providss a microcos:
in wvhich to study the events that swept acroes the broad stage of history.

It provides concrete detail and evidence to support the generalizatiors that
m mist sopetimes make to reduce the past to comprehensitle form.
Above all, hovever, it demonstrates the strength and stability o certain
individwyal and group chnrgctuistics {n the face of tremendous populatiar
growth, change of locality, and techmological progress. It demozstrates the
cmtinni‘tyafhtmdévalapentinawthutnoothermthodm.

A Fanily history can accamplish these things in spi%e of the matrmatical
odds because the family name, handed dowr. through the male line usually carries
with it property, customs and traditions that influence the education. wvalues,
and occupetior of each succeeding gemeration.

e family is a useful device through which to stvdy bumen ievelcpment
because it is the basic unit of society It is the orgamization to vhich

& person bclonga that usually has the strongest and longest qnotﬁona.. iafluence
upon him. Ammbelongtosfmily a local club, a church, = miiitary
unit, & lodge, a corporation, a county, a state, and a country, »u% he is torn




f1rst into the family, is ‘tanght basic attitudes by it, grows uwp 1n it,
associstes vith its other members off and on all through life, and judges
Mmmudthoacu¢bthersintemdtthapemea

and recollectinns, a large share of which came from within the family. Be
mmmwwummzwdmm,m
Mbutnflmmedbythamapoqiunwbothcmeiouslym
WMJJ.

The family is also probably a far stronger institution than we realize.
Most of us usually think of a family in terms of the three or four
generations that we knov persomally. In such a shart range viev there seems
to be little contimitly and strength to the imstitutiom. We are far more
canscious of the changes in detaill that marriage, birth, death, eand changiag
times bring with them. Actually we see only ome smll part of a cultursl
contimnm that influences equally ocurselves and many oﬂ#r people vho are
unknown to us. We do mot know all of our living cousins, but ve and they, at
same point not too far in the past, had ancestors, borm of the same parents,
vho lived together, shared experiences, and learned the family custame which
they in turn passed om to their children.

Population has increased so rapidly throughout the world ina receat

centuries that we are over-awed by the very mass of humanity. We sce the
United States vith over 160 million pecple, Britain with over 50 million,

Canada with over 10 million and Australia with nearly 10 million. We forget
that only a fev generatioms ago, about the year 1500, the Islard of Aritain
beld only sbout 3 million people from wham the great mjori.ty of Arecdicans,
Canadians, and Australians were descended, at lesst in part. fmenz 3 miliiom
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pecpie, thers would probably havebeen not mare than 600,000 single femily
units. Mamy of these families would have heen ciosely relsted--parts of
a pareat family. | :

If ome pushes the same reasoniag & bit further back to 1086, the
time of the campilation of the Domesday Bock, and only twenly yeers after
-the last invasion . Rritain, one could reduce the mmber of familiee
to ebout 307,000. Since ve are limited to written rgcards for or
information ebout families it wonld be bard to gather the evidenge to
compile & history for each ce of the 200,000 families, bui cgair the math-
ematics serves tc demonstrate that a fev Zamily histaries waunld ﬂlust.;mte
a great dea.]. abont w!:a.. has bhaprened to & large end inpfluential eecoeny af
mimrm. We are much cleser to tke past than we realize ent ii;s
influence is always with us. ;

ip fact, we are 59 clcac to tha past that 18 sta:'t.ung It avggesic
ﬂ:ﬂt mankind bae anly recent]y begun to inh.'rit the earth. It ﬁusssts thai
we have not yet finished a definite pha.rs& in cur histary tkat begzr abcut
6,000 years ago.

Uammtmhubeenpresentontheear.thawhlmge?pcﬂod
of time. We knov that he inhabited caves and fought snizels and the elemsnts
for severel hundred thousand years. We do not know vhei ths humsn populetien
dtﬁemld{us&ringthttim, butitmsth-vebeenrelzuvely canstant,
ouzbering not mere than a few hundred thousand people at any cue time, and
scattered into many smll family and clan units living relatively isalited
from each other, o ch tied to a small arsa of the ea~th's surface becauce
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¢mmmnmw¢.mmmamm. The rate of
atural imcresase mst bave been very low. A poor diet might cause & lov
fertility rate, end the ignarance of sanitation and the dangers of the
 forest would certainly cause & high desth rate.

Perbaps we may never know exactly ubst caused the changs, but suddenly
the human race exploded. The explosicn has gone ch about 6,000 years already
and it is not over yet. The vord "explosion” may seem strange uhen epplied
to this time span, but it is appropriate because hat bas happsened has
happened suidenly uben compared with the long existence of the humau race,
and the results have been drastic. Ia that relatively short time the human
race has acquired mobility, learned to read and write, learned to manipulate
its enviromment, and above all has learned how tc cut down its deatb-rste.
The combination of these things has caused the human race to change fram e
scattered band of two-legged animals, a minority among animals who fought
for survival, imto the dominant living organism on tke face of the earth.
We have now approached the point vhere we can see an end to tke establishuenc
of nev human setilements throughout the world. |

There is still room for many mare people. and we cen dgubtless learn
hov to make the world support many mare, but at least we can see ihat witkin
a few decades or a fev centuries we vill have reached the end of the phase
of human conquest of the earth that began 6,000 years ago. What will happen
when the nev phase begins no one cay say, but we should recaognize that it
vill be a nev ¢ra with nev problems that we must face.
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Ithhn-diowtmmud-n'sw:nwmmcthe. Ve
imov very 1ittle sbout the course of humn life wp until the explosion
began. PFortunstely, however, Mai learned to write within two or three
thousand years after the explosicn began and we have soms vritten recards
dmwmmmmmmdmmmm.

Munmtb:mnndmmlelmdtomu,mmm'
morﬁsmxzpt,mwmmchveanhnnmudmmw
'an met his problems, developed ideas, and passed them on to be used by
successive generatians.

Unfortunatelyy it is bard for pecple to realize that there is any
Sersonal connection between themselves and the past. History invalves
cead people, and it is difficult to make them come alive in ocur minds
end put them imto the context in which they lived. If we anly realized
ov much we were still influenced by the things that our ancestors 4did and
bkow like them wve are, wve would be ahle to see increased significance in
their histary. It is possible, however, to put history imto a mare
personal perspective by studying in detail the history of one family.

anhmmtmwmmuﬁwmm
Ymndfimmtwmmbmmw-ddmtmm"m
the begiming of the great explosion. If we kmew what had happened to
tvo hundred men, one after ancther, we would have a much clesrer ides
of the history of -the entire race.

mmmwcmm,mmmemtmuw
-t; I bave chosen to tell the story of my own family. It is s American
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mnm-@mtmmmmmnmurmmm
2t particular way seem to live in the United States. Its history must
gn,m,uumwmmtmdwunuﬁnm.
Tideswell is located in the "Feak" district of the Pennine range
. norifhern Derbyshire. It is high, rugged country vith grey stone
owing on all sides. The town itself is built of this stone and is
'muded into & ravine that vinds up among hills and high plateaus. There
e racy lead mines in the vicinity and there is evidence that sore
" the:e mines were worked npré-&n.n times. Stone-age implements
:ﬁbm'mmmnmobem.tomdnmby. We know therefore
qt the place has been the site of nman babitation for over two
’musandyurs,andbecmethtim-agemplmntlmdirricultto
ate, recple may have lived there even before the beginning of the

reet buman explosicn. We do not know whether habitaticn was continucus
ZLore e opening of the lead mines, but it is reasomably certain that
% has been since that time. '

The Romans began their concuest of Britain in 43 AD, but it was
7t until afier the great uprising of The British Queen Boudicea in the
2ar 61 that the Legions pushed north to and past Tideswvell. To the
outh of the region lived the Celtic tribe known to the Romans as the
‘ornovii. To the north lived the Brigantes who held out against the
lomans for several years.

A pig of lesd, mined under Roman rule and bearing the mark of the
rperor Badrian (117-138 AD) bas been found in the region. There is
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Rcman soldiers and administrators coming to Britain, living in dominance..: :-
and isolatice, and then retiring to Rame when their tour had finished.

" Instead they came to Britain, intermarried, taught their language and
_ their custams to the pecple vith vhom they came in coutact and became

prtotth.MmhtiontothicM.
We do not know how many pecpls there were in Tidesvell &t this

time. “arious scholars bave estimated the entire population of Britain

in Romaa times at sameplace between four and five hundred thousand people.. :
When the famous Damesday Bock was campiled for the Normans in 1086 Tideswell
had sbout 150 pecple uhile Britain held about a million and a half. This . :

' suggests that if a settlement actumlly cocupied tbe site of Tideswell
' in Roman times, its population might have been about 50. Such a figure

in twrn suggests that about ten families made up the population. This
is a emal]l mmber of families to provide miners for the lead mines, but
we do not knov hov actively the mines vere vorked. It is also possible
that the mines were worked in part by slaves u:uugut in especially for
thstpmos;,wthtmdthcmuvedmthcﬁommm
could be near to the mines and also farm part of the time. It is certain,. :

however, thattberemnohrgeacttlenenftoluvearcbetlogictl

traces.

In 154 AD, the Brigantes redelled during a period in which trocps
verewithdnmfratm:ngimforcminscow. The trocps
vere brought back and the rebellion put down. To protect the ares of

' the lead mimes from a recurrence & fort was built about 158 AD about five
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mmmanmn.tﬂmumm, Derbyshire. The Romans
cauedthefort,m,mu‘lcm'ithmw:
" military road that led vithin tvo and cne half miles of Tidesvell. Truces
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of this roed remain to this day. |

'nmuxmmmﬂncmmubymm,
‘ T4desvell never became & major commercial center. In fact the Rocans
' do not appear to bave followed up their initial interest. Britain was
involved 1p a series of rebellicns by ambitious Generals who sought to
use it as a base from which to establish themselves as Emperor of the
Roran Empire. In addition, sbout 287, the Saxons® began to raid the
coest of Britain. Although some military measures against them vere

undertaken, the intermal troubles of the Empire weakened their
effectiveness and in 367 a ccmbined attack by Picts, Scots, and Saxons
broke th-rugh Hedrian's wall end other organized defenses and flooded
the country vith raiding bands of barbarians. Only the walled towmns

¢ vived this sttack. The raiders vere eventually driven off, but ‘

permanent damage had been done to the most heavily Rommnized segment
of the Romano-Celtic population. There is no way to Judge ths effect
of tais episode on Tideswell, but in all probability it marked the
enc. of any substantial Roman or Romano-Celtic impact on the culture and
heritage of the community.

£ The term "Zaxon” is used as a general term for the related tribes of
| Angles, Sexons, and Jutes vho attacked and settled England at the end

Eh s 2t e e e




MMwﬂanem.p&i&dmmum. It
would have carrsad us from wumber 63 to mmber 53 on our generstion time-
scale. It is discouraging to bave tc tell the story of ten gensrstions in

: a fev paragrsphs, particularly when wve bhave no direct knovledge of the oames

and personslities of the pecople concerned. We do not knowv vhether the
tovn was destroyed in the raids of 357 or if there were actually peocple
living there then who continued to live there afterwards and whose
descendants escaped the misfortunes of wvar to mingle with the Saron
invaders who later settled in the region. We can only establish definite

feontimitydrutwfrcnthc&xmpeﬁodtothemsm. We do
' know, however, that Romano-Celtic elements elsevhere in the northern
ipu-tt Britain did escape these raids, and we can assune from this that

the sare thing may bave happened at Tideswell.
Roman rule continmued for scme years after 357 in an ever shrinking
area to the socuth and east, but in all probadility comtact betwveen the

:Bmhpinmtheamo-cuu in Britain was definitely broken about

the year 410. Also about this time came a change in the tactics of the

' 8axon irvaders. Whereas formerly they came to raid and plunder, they

novw begaa to come to settle down.
There vas & Christian Church in Roman Britain, but the Saxons were
beathen, and as they settled the east and south they pushed the Church

~ north and west. Eventually the Saxons occupied all of Britain except

Cornvall, Wales, northern Scotland and a few scattered aress where the
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oris‘.lml!mbimw Many of the British resaimed in the °
mm,mmmmnwmw m&mﬂfinuy
mcwmkmamtdmwthMdmmm
STT and near the mouth of the Mersey in 613. This gradual move inland
tmt&mtcmtmmtmmmdmdmmu-
when the Bomano-Celts arcund Tideswell lost contact with the Roman
mmmmemmmymrmmcmfmdbymm.
Although in ocur generation time-scale the 534 generatiom back would
haveseenthegrettrsidcf367undthe§htmldhsveseentbe
begmggormmms‘xoumhwm the 4Sth genersticn
munmmw'&mm-mmamww.
In the year 597, St. Augustine landed in Kent to begin the comversimm
of the Saxons. Caught between the Celtic Christians in the north and
wvest and the mev Christian wave from Rome, the Seaxons did not offer

too much opposition to conversion. Furthermore, they had nov become

farmers instead of seafaring reiders and had passed nearly two hundred years,

o over 8ix generations, subjected to the cultural influences of the
Romano-Celtes whom they had coniuored and vith vhom they had inter-

married.

During medieval times and up into the seventeenth century, Tideswell

wvas krovn a8 Tydeswall, Tideswall, or some similar spelling retaining
the a as the third vowel. Acco:'dingtolloctlhhtoryof’.l‘ideﬂell,
a Saxon mmmmunmmmeﬁcmtyabmmmm
ouiltabm-mm,surraundedbyanu,ontopatone_orthe
neighboring hills. According to this history, the town derived its name

1€ -

—




% from "TMdi's-wall” arcund the burial mound.

I bave been unable to find the original sGi3c faor this story.
"T431" 4s an acceptable Saxon mame, hovaver hrr.hcruqn,thonll
onvbichtbeb_um-mnﬂulouteduhamuﬁdeuw!opnd
coe meaning of the vwork lov is derived from the Old English hlaw
or hlsev meaning "tumlus” or "burial mound.” Tideslow them would
mean "T4di's burial mound.”

Derbyshire was a part of the Saxon kingdom of Mercia-origimally
a "march"” between the Saxons and Celts-fcTmed by Saxonb-.ndl migrating
froam the east comst into the interior. King Penda of Mercia (626-655)
engoged in @ struggle vith the Christian King Bdwin of Northumberland.
A series of battles vere ro@t between 633 and 659 with the Mercians
finally victoricus. | '

The King of Mercia accepted christianity in 659 and it is probable
that his subjects were converted rapidly thereafter.

Tid1, the Saxon Chieftain, may bave been killed in the wars with

Borthumberland, and since he was probably still s pagan, burial in
| the pagan tradition would have been in order. The countr, fu: wiles

around Tideswell is full of Saxon burial mounds dating from the pagan
era and similar in form to tbat on Tideslow Top.

It i{s probable that the derivation of "Tidesvall" 13 samevhat more
ccmplex than the Versicn given im the local history. The Saxon word
"vael" meaning "corpse" or "ome slain in battle” vas e very common word

iz such poems as Beowulf, used either by itself or in conbination with

cther ¥.rds. In the Mercian dialect, se or ® , pronounced as the a
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in "last", began-in the 8th ar 9th century to change <o e as in “bed”
elthough the spelling usually remained unchenged. IT the name of the
“ow. M.oﬂa.mm been "Tidi's wael,” msaning Tidi's corpse, or
“the place where T111 was killed 1n battle,” 1t would have been ncrmal
for this promunciation to shift toward "Tidi's well" even though
it might be spelled as "Tidis wall."®
By ths sevtnt&nth century, however, the derivation of the word wvas so
wel. lost and the prommciation as Tideswell had become as well fixed
that the spelling was changed to confarm to the sound and the legend
aros> that the name was derived from a "Tiding" well- -that is, & well

whose level roee and fell.
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¥ Qu~ sdditicnal factor may lend suppart to this i
aizin of the samz of Tideswell. MNodern english place mames ending
in "w2lil" or "wall" tend to be grouped in East Anglia, and
the counti=g alang the Thames, along the line of the Trent and Mersery
(wvaica would include T deswmll), send near the ’

These are localities vhere one wvould have expected fighting betweea

the Saxon invaders and the inhabitants, or iater between the Saxons

and the Welsh as the Saxons pushed them Westward. There are fev
excer-:icas to this regicmal grouping of place-names, but at leas:t ane

of the exceptions, Kingz Cerswell, iz Devoy migrt well £it the
iateroretatiom. it could bave been "Kings-Carls-wael"” or "The place
where the King's Carls* vere slain.” It lies near the cocast of Devon
and mxay represeat aame forgotten battle between the Saxcms and Celts

a5 the former began their push into Devon.

The suffixes "well” and "wall" are :uite common among local place
narws in the region arowd Tideswell. TRyy miy e ¥ rwsult of rivalry
over nossession of the lead minss or from other clashes petween Sexon
aaxd Celt or Saxon and Saxon.

# Qrl= follower, body guard.




The derivation of the rame Tideswell suggests several things sbout |
the camunity. F.r one thirg, -1,t suggests that no matter vhat Romano-
‘Celtic iaflueice thers -w buve b_.len, the Baxon culture Was Dov
predc-dmnt. Itﬂsomtswmmdwcﬂmwm
sither still heathen or had so recently left that status that they still
buried their chicitains in the characteristic burial mounds. It also
suggests that this ‘axon culture was never campleteiy over-shadowed in
the subisequent Danic\ invasicns.
'For this eerly peiod it ie difficult to tell the approximate
population of Tideswell. As discussed eariier, the Famano-Celtic
| 2opulation of Tidesvell wus probibly on the order of SO people cr
slout ten families. By 1086 "t la? risem to about thirty families.
‘here .8 oo way that we can te.l iow mxw of the Romavo-Celts survived
0 intermarry with the Saxons. We cu:-muu from the predoximance of
-mmmmmmtmxm:mtommmmmm
elts. iu s commmmity that small, [iwever, a fev generations would bring
bout such  atermarriage that it is srobable that all the inhabdbitacts
£ the village had both Ram:o-Celti and Saxor blood by the year T00.
3y the ye'r 700, or the 42nd gerration, the population may bave
ambered about 100, or about twenty faiiies. Those twenty families
“o%ebly coustituted the basic stock ‘ am which all later natives of
 .Gesvell were des:ended.
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Although the Saxons, particularly those in Borthumbria, had
cmmuﬁthew-ndhnicng:.mforlmtm,
the Danes in 793 began to repeat the pattern of the Saxon raids against
England. At first they were merely raids for dooty, and a long period
of time elasped between the first series of raids and the later serious
invasion. For s short time in the early 800's all of England was
united under one of the Saxmn Kings of Wessex, but this umity did not
bhold up when the Danes reneved their attacks. They began to settle
the east coast of England, and by the end of the century when Alfred the
Great fimally made an uneasy peace with them, they owned nearly all of
the northern and eastern half of England.

The Daneg, as vell as the Romans and the Saxons before them
vere attracted by the lead mines arcund Tideswell, and although Tidesvell
lay Jjust at the edge of the Danelaw, the Danes were strongly establistred
at Derby and pushed forwvard to be sure of eccess to the mines. They
reached the River Trent in 8Th. As mentiocned earlier, however, they
apparently did not displace the Sexon culture of Tideswell. This
suggests that they did not colonize or intermarry with the inhatitants
of Tideswell to any great extemt. Possibly they were too near the border
of Sexon territory, or their period of predominance was too short.

Althcugh wars between Danes and Saxons continued for scme yeurs, the
Danes vere soon Christianized and England was united. The Danes do not
amrtoh;ve been sufficiently mmmerous to dicplace the Saxon or 0ld

English language in the areas they occupied. They did leave many worde




in the language and many place-mam>s, but the main effect aeems > nave
been a dropping of wosd endings end & simplitication of the langmzs;

a ccaamon resuvlt where two similar langusges such as Danish and (14 Epglisa
caze i3 close contact. .

In 1066, during the 0th genereticn back, an army of sbout 12,000
Normans concuored Englapd, a mation of nearly one and & half miliion
people. The pioportion of numbers 1s misleeding, however, beczuse the
&:gliahhadnmi'-m.gedtoestablishaatrongcentmlgome:rt or an
integrated sytte; af cdministration and defense. They bhad been mited under
both Danish =nd Saxon Kings, but there was little sense ¢ belorging to
s single mation. The Hormans on the other hand were pecple of primerily
Danish descent who bad settled on the Normnndy peninsula in France ané
bhad abscrdec much of France's latin culture, much as the Danes vho settied
in BEngland had absorbed much of the Christian Saxon culture. Baving
learned indirectly scme of the Raman skill at organization and
administration, the Normans were able to take over the country, largely
by administrative technicues, once the Caxor army under Harold had been
defeated.

Tt tock several years to establish complete Normsn control, but
there vas nc serious campetition fram the native Exglish. William the
Concueror established his Knighte in powverful military and administrative
centers througho 't the country snd started the train of ~vents that wa: *o
develop both the English Feudal system and the English Cozmeon law. Tt
is indicative of the Horman spprcach to administration that once ke 28
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rmmmmummemmqamm@m
lands contained in his .iev nnglm. This record, kncwn as the Dcmesczy
Book, ‘ms campleted in 1086, the year before his death. It served tc
indicate the ownership of property and the taxes due from the proveriy.
m:ﬂitthch.micmeWfor
the Jev administrators of England.

According to the Domesday Book, the Manor of Hope in Derbyehive,
include the viilages of Edall, Stoke, Aston, Tideswell, and Qffertion.
Tidesvell cortained 36 men, a Pries: and a Church, a mill, and thirgy
acrea of meacéov. The Manor of Hope wvas given to William Pevera21l, ar
1llegitimate scn of ¥William the Conqueror. According to the Dom:3ca)
Book, Peverell was recu'red to pay anmual fees of lead, honey, and &
spec ified sum of money. Oue or more of the 36 men mentjoned ia the Ecox
may have belonged to tr= 290th generation back in the Tidwell family.
They probably helped tc miae the lesd or collect the honey; or they
my bave tendcd the animals in the nezadow. In time of wvar, they wvere
protably recuired to render service as men-st-arms.

The Manor of Hope offers a striXing comparison between Rama: =oc

Horman sadministration and shows samething of the relationship bet.een
them. Hope, itself, is located near the site of the old Roman fcxt c®
Acavio. Edall, Aston, Qfferton, and Stoke lie in a semi-circle, io

that order, stretching from north-west to south-east of Hope. They, plus
Hope,; lie in the Hope and Derwent vallies. To the south, the Wye riv:-
runs down from Buxtonm (the Romen A uae) to the Dervent. The ground
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smouﬂdmméeyidubytheﬂoye,m,andwefomahi@
p]ammichdropl;rfsteephtofomthenmnllies. Tae wvalls
dthilp]stmmmh.hyamﬂerotdeepnﬁnes vhich run from t:e
platesu top down to the rivers. These ravines form maturel paths

Srom the hgh ground to the vallies. Tideswell is locatel in cns of
these mines that runs down into the Wye. 1t also lies neer the center
about which the other villages of. the Manor form a semi-circle. Jn
.ddition,thehudattbenﬂnestrihetheﬁighgro:mdwthenm
road thaet ran from Acune to Anavio.

The Roman Roads vere the only paved roads built in England before
the eighteenth century. Mtrncucftharminandsomptches
cf the stone surfaces :cre in reasomably good repair even today. Jt
the time of the Normayn conquest they were the best means of cammnicaiicn
in existence. Althoug: Acuae wvas never a big town, it was onec of the
larger Romn commmities north of the mmin ares of Roman culture. 1¢

" was a crossing place for main military roads, one leading from Chest.::

to Donczster end the cther from Menchester to the south. Amavio lay
ten miles to the north-east of Acume. It was one of the southerr :aos
forts built to police and protect the wild and unsettled northern
balf af.h;:gland. It uas located in such a way that it could protect:
both Aquae and the lead mines which were dotted abuut cn the high
ground between the Hope, Derwent, and Wye rivers. The road from A uze
to Apavio would also have served gs a rtmte by vwhich the lead :xoulé
have been shipped out a” the area. Because of the road, the river




vallies and the course of the revines, Amvio mst have been a logical
aininistrative center for ©:: lead miming ares. . - . .
nammndmmmtotnuuea. It 18 a logical
mtmmmmwmmmq rt;-omdsautthelead-m;img
ares thet had looksd to Anavio for protectica in Rogmn times in much
the seme way that it bad to lool to Hope for protection in Bormen times.
This organization of man’'s haditition dictated by the terrain, appears
toﬁ.vebmfmmdwuficnlpwslazperioddtm. The Saxors
appear to have called Apavio, '&m”, vhich meant "wall” or “enclosure”.
The remains of the Roman Fort my, therefore, have served the Saxons
for & time in the same capacity. ﬂmdouwtsm#ohvebeeathe
formal organization of the aresa undar the Sexons, hovever, such as that
crested by the Sormsne. '

If there vere 36 men in Tideswell in 1086, as noted by the Damasday
aook,muthnbmaa-tbmamﬁomlemmmnge
counting both sdults and children. Although no bulldings fram that era
survive, stane was plemtiful, and it i: probable that many of the
bouses ware butlt with it. Ia spite of its small size and its remoteness fraam
the main centers of power in England, Tidesvell assumed an importance
during the medieval period out of preportion to its proper positian.

William Peverell, grandson of the origimal Norman ovmer, poisoned
Ramulph, Earl of Chester, and sought refuge in lenton Priory. On his
death he be uethed to the Priory two thirds of his tithe in tne Meror
of Bope. At the sams time, King Henry II reclaimed the estates of zc

- 26 -




v —— TR e e =

—ii___#f

Peverells for the Crom. Iater King John gave the tithe rigats ic the L=an
and Chapter of Litchfield. Litehfield was ihe location of the zair
ecclumcmmthemthdwmdudm&mtdm
of veight in Qnoeh affairs. A rivalry developed, therefore betueex
Litchfield and the lenton Priory with each party trying to estadlist
its right to collect the tithes. Since the tithe was probably mid in
large part in leed, the tithe of the Menor of Hope was well wvorih
controlling.

Lead vas an extremely important building maierial in mediewl
times. It was used in church roofs and in making the leacd and glas=s
vindows used in the churches and great houses until camparatively recznt
times.

Ia 1207, King Jchn gave Tideswell 1tself which now appears tc have
been split off from Hope, to a man variocusly called Thomms Armi er
or Thomas Ianeley. T'ds 1s typical of scme of the confusion thet eiisted
at this time over fanily names. Althouzh scme of the upper clesses, such
as the Peverells, had firmly established family rames at the tine o the
Dozesday Book, the great majority of pecple, particularly those o Sexon
ancestry, faollowed a much more informal and diverse syatan cxf.
.appelation. As long as names vere used orally they tended tc depcnc
on the perscoal attributes or life history of the person rather than ca
his family origin. Only vhen bpames were written down in records whZch
were referred to in the conduct of business did the family naze: fins)ly
begin to taks on their modern fixed character. Fven then there s .=
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sused further changes in family names.

" Since the recards of the twelfth and thirteenth centuries were

wt in Iatin, there was a tendency for the half educated to mis-read

ie recard and further comfuse the name situation. In the case of Thomas
meley, the clerkvho wrote the records at same point, probably vrote his

me as "Thams lameley, Armiger” or simply "Thamas, Armiger", meaning

“cmas, a8 military man" or gentlesan mzn-at-arms. "Armiger" was

equertly used to denote an un-knighted gentleman who carried arms.

meley may have been Thamas's family name, but his profession seems to

ve brought a change at this point and he appears to have became Thomes

niger instead.

- Fing John granted Tideswell to Armiger at the caminal reat of

‘ty shillings & year. It is imteresting to specuiate that King John
favoring a man who might support him in his afruggles vith the

onc; struggles which later culmineted in the signing of the Magna

ta ir 1215. At this time Tideswell must have contained between two and

2e hurdred people, or forty to sixty men capable of bearing arms.

——. ——_ Tideswells of Derbyshire

The Ffirgt rearord of a faaily that dsrived its name from the town
Ticderwuall is foumd irn the Pipe Roll Fo. S3, for the 9th year of the
2 0f Xing Jokn (1208). In a long liat of fines assessed for some
seted reason aganinst people of Derbyshire appear the folloving namer;

‘Richard de Senetley 4M., Peter de Briminion M., Oliver

?il. Nigel, VWarenus de Tideswell¥* 1, Tam Foljembe 1, ..."

R

3!

G?

. -d be k2pt ir mind that the name was usuaily spelled Tiddesw:ll

-

7th ceatury. Spelling of the name in Medieval records has teen

~
-
>
-

o

s |
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Thus it eprears that a sen named Warren of Tidesvell was fined the oz of
cze Mark in the year 1208.% |

This fine, however, dou not seem to suggest tkhat Warren of' Ticegwall
was in wmusual 4ifficulties, for two years later he and Tam Faljambe e
both sppointed to a Jjury who inspected a piece of property invoived in ¢
legal dispute. There is alsco a record that he held two bovates aof i@
in Tideswell and two rore from William Ferers, Farl o Derby. £ bcycte
was the amount of lapc that an ox-gang could plov in e year end variec 2
size from ter to eighteen acres. Two bovates would ther:®ore be
between tweriy and thirty-six acres and four bovates between forty cxd 2
acres. These facts suzgest that Werren of Tideswvell was a man < so=e tub.
stance in the comrmity. This is confirmed by his association with
Poljambe, for the Fol:anbe family ves probadbly the most promizent femily
in the commmity for at least two centuries. It 1s also confirmed b, ke
fact that he vas knowr by the name cf the town. Mc. Yeatman, auwthar
of ‘:he "Peudal History of the County of Derby" speculates thai Warren
of Tideswvell may have been a member of the Daniel family that hell the
Marocr of Tideswell for some time during the middle ages. In axy case le
appears to have been a Kinght well placed and well thought of in the
commrity.

The struggle between Crown and Barons continued during the reign

¥ Oos mark was ecual to 2/3 of & Pound Sterling, or thirteen Shillirzs
and four Pence--a sizeable sum in the Thirteenth Century.
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" ihe comumity. Thomas Armiger's daughter Joan married a men named
2mrl of Bampton. In 1250, Hemry IIT granted him the right for the
villege to hold a Market on Wednesdays and & two day's Fair at the
Festival of the Decollation of St. John the Baptist. Thus Tideswell
became & NMerket town and samething of & regiomal center in its own
~ight. Also in 1254, the Parish of Tideswell was separatsl from
~re Thurch of Hope and a Vicaruge was provided. Perbaps jecause of
the rcrlesiastical rivalry for the tithes mentioned earlier, the
7ideswell Taurch rose in importance and in the yeer 1300 an imposing
“harch wes begun vhich later became known as "the: Peak Cathederal”.
Mir buliding stili]l stands and is one of the main attractions far
~Asicors in the ares.

The next record of the family concerns Willian of Tideswell whose
w2 w5 mentioted in the Pleas of the Forest in the year 1229.
‘m 1237, he wes menticned as Wiliiam of Tideswell "who had ‘the Honour to
'e7m ty Charter.” This meant that he held property by royal Charter
rd nct frox an internediate Iord. This same record irdicstes that
2 paid 5 Merks to the Crown and another record for 1242 shows
¢ "Hical of Cusincton, Wm. Germum, William of Tideswell, Paulipe
? Banton, Galfr of Mapelton” paid ten marks "for a transgression.”
2ere is no indication of the mature of the "transzression.” The Pauline
© Bontod may actually have been the Paul of Bampton who married
1 dauzkter of Thamas Armiger.




Siace the records of Willfan of Tideswell follow those of Werrer .
: :»fTidcmllbyabcutamentimwmmethathe:iﬁvhubeem_,a r
.. son. After this point, the record is rulte ccnfused because of the - -~ .

‘.-;m'mdnwrdwmnmdmmmtmtmuf. " S

el

-‘ pUie311 iz*.pcss:l.b]é to sort out relationships amcog them. As zear ss it
' -2n be determined, however, on the basis of frageats, William may have < -
 ad & brother, HEugh or Bugo, who was the ancestor °f cme branch of .

3!

| b= frxily that moved to Chestercield. William als. appesss to Mave ba:d :
1o1% oY mezicws pamed Richard and Robert. The descsrcdants of
| “ichnr oppeer to iave stayed near THcesvell until lets ip <he fourteenthr -
“@altusy, but Rober: 2ad his sons appear to have became wolved
2. tioe siruggle between Simon do Montfore and' Henary LI i1 o wmy that -
:3used txem to5 leave the vicinity of Tideswell.
¥iilign Ferrers, Earl of Derby until 1254, hol been a siromg .
uppcrier o Heary IIX. Upon his death his grandscn, Robert Perrers,
ucceeced to the title, and vhen he became of ag: in 1260 he sided with.
e Barcis against the King. He collected e large body of retsiners :
‘round him at Duffield Castle, & fev miles nartii of Derby and about . -
wenty miles south of Tidesvell. Duffield Castle vas the largest
orz=1 Feep in Bngland cutside of the Tower of fomdon. Its possession.
Ave the enemies of the King cne of the strongent military positioms in
ae Midlands. When Benry IIX was dafeated at lewes in 1264, the yowg.
iT1 of Derby led his retainers on s great reid inco the royal Peak Forest

ere they kiljed a large mmber of dser to feed tae Farl's troops. -
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When the King regained his throne the followirg year, however, n:
confiscated the lands of the Ear] of Derdy, destroyed Duffield Casile,
and gave the lands to his son Edmmd who later beceme Ewrl cf
lancaster. Duffield castle wms so thoroughly destroyed that its
ruins were 1iscovered only by sccident im 1886.

In the reign of Edward I, (1272-1307) the sons of Robert of
Tideswell appeared in the vicinity of Duffield. It may well be “het
thay moved from Tideowvell because of scme involvemert in this rcle
played by tte Earl of Derby. 1Im 1279, Roberti's son Henry accusec
one Roger de Wardintci of having taken # Mark from him unjustly.
Wardinton had been bailif for Edmmd, Luke of Comva.ﬁ., brotaer of
Henry III. The came mecord also indicates that Wardinton was accus:zd
of taking money from oze Richard Pricket of Ashbourne, Derbyshire.
Ashbourne 1s seven or eight miles to the west of Duffield and tue
T:deswell faxlly wms closely conrected with the neighborhood of Ashbourne
for generations thercafter. It rey well be, therefore, that Eenry o
Tidesvell was also a resident of Ashbowrne by 1279. The land records
of Ashbourne, compiled during the reign of Edward i refer to otkar
mer Sers of the family. Sometime during the reign, Robert, another sc:a
af Fobert of Tideswell witnessed a Grant of lard aid Thams, anotier
soc, vitaessed a deec. The records for Atlov, & harlet three miles io
the east, toward Duffield, shov that om the first of Bovember 1300,
John Tiddeswal! witnessed a deed. Ancther record, of umcertain date but
probably &uring the reign of Edward II (1307-1327) refers to Rober:

s 919 =
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of Tidesweil “Kniveton leiger”. This means thet he oued sllegieace
for the -illage of Kniveton vhich lay moar Sghbocrme end Atlov. Taus
ve £irc ali chree sonc of Rcbert cf Tid=aswell iu a feirly smll arel
becween Ashbourne and Duffield in the f£ifty years fcllowing the fincl
victary of Fenry IXI -ver Sincn‘de Montlort.

According to thc surmized relaitionchipe, the first Robert of
Tideswell would have -elonged to the tvenaty-third gencration Beck ia
th> Tidwell family. . enry, Thcmes, and the younger Robert wculd have
belang=d to thz tuweni -second. Altar ties2 men there is a brez!: ia
the firm fe._ iy histc-y. There &r2 records of 8 mumbder ¢ Tideswal's 5.
Derbyshire, :ncluling another Herry of Tideswell who was promirent ot
th2 town of Tidecrell during the Pxutecnth century. Edvard IJ wvas 2
weck king ar’ the cow:try wc tora rith rebellion. Records duringz hic
reizn .ust love suffeiad accordingiy. .m 1348, the Black Desth
st:uck the ccumtry, end as oy a3 ¢ querter of ¢h2 peopie may hove
d1.:2 from thc plegue. A great deo! of rigery and disczder follcued
in its wake. The estnolished socicl orcer was shakea z2und in tk2
suc roec.ng Cecades thete wae & groat dect of migratics and wmres:.

Unc oz the elrcunsuaness therz 15 Litile wemiz: that we nuveosmly sovmiis
ref:ences (- poet of the TiZeccllf CQwing tho . ariesztil ceatur,
Only Benry of Tideswell seems to stand out clearly, although he does
not seem to be part aof the main stream of the family. He held lavd in
the vicinity of Tidesi=ll, and was associated vith the Staffords of

Eysn who held the Mancr of Tideswell during this period. On the Z¢tk
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% Staford, James Foljambe, and others for the purpose of founding e

: chantry at the altar of the Church of Tideswell faor prayers for the
souls of a number of prominent people including John Foljambe and Henry
Tiddeswell. |

Most of the lith century records of the Tideswells occur

early in the cnetury, and it may be that most of the family died out
in the Plague and 1nt.he disorders of the century. There are no
records of Tideswells In the town 1tuﬁ after 1392 vhich suggests
that Henry of Tideswell may have died without leaving sons to carry
on his branch of the family. There is only cne other trace of the
family in the latter half of the fourteenth century. In 1379, during
the reign of Richard I, a heavy poll tax was instituted to suppert
the campaign in France The issue Rolls of the Exchequer contain

the name of Richard Tyddeswell. It is possible that he may have been

a grandson of the younger Robert of Tideswell or another of Roberti's
generation. In any case Richard Tyddeswells may represent “he element
of the family that stayed in the vicirity of Ashbourne.
The Tideswells of Staffordshire

Richara i1 wes fimmily deposec in 1399 end hnis successors prcseruica
the wvar vith *rance once more. Henry V reached the peak of Englich
success at Agincourt, but after his death the French were able to reve=e=
the trend under the inspiration of Joan of Arc. After her death in
143, the hguah von no more great victories and the Fumdred Years
War drewv to a c\lo-e ir 1453 with the final defeat of the 'Bng]_ish. Evan

-
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betmﬂntdste,m,ﬁemordenmtmtommtothe
Hars of the Roses dDetween the houses of Iancaster and York had already

begun. |
Benry VI proved to be a weak king and there w=s graat rivulry

amorg the great nobles in their maneuvering for influence end a place

in the line cf succession. In their wvake the lesser nobles and gertiryr
indniged in raids, sieges, murder, and litigation for the advaicexent of
the: - oun schemes. Add=d to this gererally lavless stmospaere w2: th-
pressure of population. After the Black Death of a ceatury eerliex
the shartage of labor bad caused many landlords to take up sheep
raising in place of agriculture. By the middle of the fifteenth century,
howvever, the population had replaced its losses and the rural vorker
nov found that there wes no place for him to go. 3e hed been repisced
by the shepherd. 1In addition to the population pressure, the soldiers
were begimning to return from the unsuccessful war in France, singly
or in groups or in "free comparies". These ren were used to warfee
and zany were well traioed to that and to litile else.

in?ar the influencs of the Duke of {uffolk, King Henry had been
married to a French Princess, Margerct aof Ang:-n. This was an uproyaior
mar: {ige and ‘nvolved ‘' he surrondew ~f e-me ~# 4Lb- Wessa Jands 1 Tonmia.
The aarriage was oppor:d by the Duke of Gloucester, cae of the siiongzie
and most popular nobles in England. A parliament was esc2ibled at
Bury-8t Mounds ia Suf<olk and the Duke of Glovcester Afed vhile attznding
1t ip Pebruary 1h47. There was great suspicion throughout the couniry
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that bhe had been murdered on orders of the Duke of Suffoli or Quecn

xl;fgant.

The Piea Rolls of Henry VI give & gcod smuple of cbe si.calilicn
11 the couutryside. On the Wednesday afte- Ail Eelicwz (1 Hova:lexn;
5. 1.2, @ zroup of cbout a hundrel me3 atiacks: the MHencs: of ier
or Jcver, about & rile north of Myfi2lé ir Steffordshire tnd 2zcas
tL2 same distance tc the porthwest of Askbcurne, Deroy. 4AC lecst 2372
of the group wvere from Staffordshire, imcluding Richard Tiddeswelle,
yeoman,®* of Mayfield. The remsinder were from Ashbourne anc its
vicinity. 7They were under the leadership of William Coxeyn, gentlesmu,
of Ashbowric. Dressed in jacks and salettes, and arxed witr spears, bar:s.
and arrows they stormed into the mnnor housze and seiging the ben:az: .
tresties, and tables broke down the doors and smashecd ocut the wvindov:.
They then piled the Furniture into a grect bonfire at wihich they
roigtrd pleces of decr shot Ir the rarl adjoiningz the mor hource.
Pal:5~ Oker, gentler-: man-st-zrms. ané owzar of the manor was n
ILoxeor et tze tip2 g :enading Pariic:zatl ir the service of 25 wri
£vy, Lard Terrers o Credy. There is o zomtica ¢ amy rosist nor.
th.ch suggezts that [ =r hed le?: the rowe . Isfudicicusiy mmuoocosd oo
tiit hie re.iimery Bol net gezr Tit Lo zet thei ends Yoe) ool
belels.

Tre foliiowlng spring a grcup of apprczimately ths zc-e cerpositica

3 That is, “ree, middle class farmer who may have rented or owned
the land that he farmed.
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returned to the attack, this time led by W!1lliem Cokeyn and Thursten
Vernon. Or the *day of the Conception of Our lady” in 1449, they erizzd
the park, tare down the fences and killed approxirmtely 120 deer
leaving only five alive in the park. |

»mﬁemondafhlylhh% the Sheriffs of Stafford and Derby
were crdered by Writ to proclaim that 211 kown members of these bauncs
ghould appear in cowrt. Their proclamations seem to have been igpored.

On the Thurszday defore All Hallows (1 Eovember) 1449, a group of
about forty men was assembled gt Thorp in Derbyshire under the
leadership of John Coxeyn, gentlersn man-at-arms, of Ashbourre, and
Wiiliam Cok2yn, his brother. The tend included Richard Tiddasvclle
and a mmber of other men who had taker part in the raids on Cxcver.
The reason Tor the ac ;embly is nmot given, but for some reason they
exchanged ifasults witi: 2 mcn named Adam Baxtondene frcxr the Ma-or cf
Blore and & mumber of his frisnds. Klore is in Staffordshire Just to
the north aid west of Ckover, but tecause of a bend in the River Dove,
Trorp lay to the north of Blore altlough it was aon the Derby side cf
tke river. The pnaturc of the insults is not known, but it can be surmised
ttct the pecple of Blore were friemds of their neighbors at Okoer cni
scaevhat unhappy over the raids on the latter plzce. Whatever tke
insults, however, thev led to blows, and the blows led to a
rumning fight that secms to have Eone heavily in favor of the band imdar
the Cokeynes. They appear to have gome home to Ashbourme from Thorp by




vay of Blare wvhere they paused long emcugh to burm forty carticeds

of gcas, twenty cartlcads of bay, and to sieal two armuleses, wwro b,
and a thousand arrows. (m@wmevmeaatzloua
th> wespons at Lk 20, an interesting comentary on the relative value

of agricultural produce and mamufactured items). Yo deeths verc
reported from the fight but Adam Baxtonedene appesrs to have been btudly
injured.

Ralph Basset, the owner of Elore, brought suit agrinst the Cokayrec
and the other members of the group. After some difficulty in
assenbling a jury, the case was fimally tried in 1451 or 1452 and Besecct
was swrded damages of & 80 and costs of L 20. Five of the leaders cof
the group were convicted and the charges against the others, including
Richard Tiddesvelle, vere dropped.

In the meantime, Philip Cker also brought suit agsinst the
group that had attackid OGkover. The defendants failed to appear in
court and (ker vas sverled darres end costs amounting to 400 mer!s.

The Sheriffs of Stafford and Dert; isre cordared to arrest the de’cnieri:
but there is no record that this wre dere or that eitker Basseat o

Oker :xver received th: money aiaricc to thex by the court. Taese

court actions, however, seem to have curtailed ti2 actions of tne

raiders since there it no record of any further cperaticns of the bend.
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of the Roses. That is, they probahly supported the Queen, Suffolk,
and others vho used the lancsstrian King Nenry VI as 8 figwrenead. Cg
the other hand, a Bir Jobm Cokayne of Ashbourne was killed at the
battle of Ehrewsbury, in 1403, fighting against the Lancastrian
Eeary IV grandfather of the present king. The Cokoyaes sad their
followers might well nve favored the Duke of York wvho was fn quasi-exfile
in (reland at this poiat, but he returned to Epngland in August of
1545 and began a series of maneuvers that eventually resulted in cpen
warTare betuween lancasirians and Yorkists. It may be that the
Cokayres and others we—e never fully prcsecuted beceuse aof the
preoccupatioca of the country with York's threats and maneuvers.

Richard Tiddeswe: e was probably a youngz man at tte time of the rails.
Ee might hsve been bora sametime atout 1415 to 1430. 7Tn such a case
he might well have becn a graadson of th2 Richard Tyddeswelle
mertiz.>d in the Issue Rolls of 1375 and a pember of the 16th
geperation back ir the Tidwell family. It is seldom that cre fincs
such interesting backgound data on a yecman of thefifieenth century.

There 1s no way of knowing how the Tidecwell family dropped in
status from Knight to “ecman. The Cokeya fanily wvas praminent: im Ash-
bouwne for many years before and after the event. Sir Johm Cokyne of
Ashtource was killed at the battle of Shrewsbury im 1403 thile in
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Tebellicr. against Benry IV. If the Tideswells were customary followers
of the Cokyns they may have participated in this rebellion and loct
mmmu-ueadmly._ |

There is no further reccrd of the Tidesvell family wmtil 1535.
It is possible that Richard Tiddeswelle may Dave been killed im the War
of the Roses and left oaly & young som to carry cm the nams. This
might account in part for the absence of records. The Battle of
Towtun aloue; 18 1M6L, sccounted for 38,000 deaths, about 5 percent
crmnaftuthcnblebodiedinhmatthistim.

n 1535, the wi!l of Alexander Tyddyswall, also of Mayfield,
Staffordshire, was filed with the ecclesiastical court of Iitchfield.
This wili, vritten shc:-tly before the dissolution of the monestariec §:
the reign of Senry V1J., shows the strong influence of those ~eligicus
institutions.

"In the name of g4 be it the ysar of our lord 153% (1535 mew
style) the xxiii dy of febrary. 1 Alexander Tyddyswall make thia my
last vyll end testament. in the mnozer and forms following first I be
cuecth my soul to almi-hty god and hys mother cur lady Seynt Marye =4
all the clestyall campeny of heyven and my vody tc be ruryed in the
parish chiochyard of Meifeld. Ttem I be ueath to my mortuaryc as the
lav Wyll give Item I be ueath to Saynt Marye house of __ 1 d. o
Saynt Codd house of lychferd (ILitchrfield?) 41 d. Item to Burtom
Llazarus f1 d. to Saynt John Friars ii 4. Item I wyll tast Jobm CGill
Xy son in lav shall bave all that is his right that he caa prcve of
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courant owed by writing or by good and lawfull record shall be fulfilled
Ttem ___ to Robrt ___ my servant coe share Itea to Roger Suttan a
other share ImzvnwmﬂmmM?u- It. Iwgll

that after my issue te paid and my beueaths ful?illed the residue o my
goocds shall remain upon Elyn my wife and Elyn my daughter.....”

Since Alexander Tyddyswall mentions grown children he must have been
mualangmymuﬁit is p-asible that he wes born about 1465. Be
iz%t Lave been & son of Richard "iddesvelle, the yeoman raider,
tur it is more likely that he wvas a grandson and i member of the 1lith
geu2racion in the Tidvell family. Fram the mention of property inm the
~i’l 22 too wes probebly of the yeoman class and rmomh]s well off.

it is unforsumate that the will does not list Alexander's childven
vty aame. It mercions & daughter, Elyn, who seemr to have been unmmr—ied
crd living at home. Tae Perish records of ‘I.‘X.npley, Staffo: p
ghor szct an Eldns Tydswele was buried on 7 March 1594. Xingley wms the
2cle of & man vho was probedly a great-nephev of Tlyn Tyddyswall anc the
turial record may indicate that she lived to an sdvanced age with her
rerr’ives and never married. Alexaunder must have had ancther daughter,
the wife of Jchn Gill. The will implies that there were other
heirg ~2sides the daughters mentioned. He mmst bave had sons since the
Tamilyr cantirned in the same locality. There are records of three men
wac were probebly soms of Alexander Tyddyswall. <Cae of these was Richard
Tidmpll of C;mdover, Shropshire (zhe next countr to the west) whose
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vill vas filed at Shrewstury on 25 Jammry 1560. Unfortunately the will
itself has not been found. The second u' John Tydswell atkltcn,
Staffordshire (three miles to the south of Mayfield) whose will was dated
31 Kerch 1558. This vill mertions a brother, Thomas Tydsvall, & cooper
of Burton.¥ There 1s no way of knowing the relative ages of these three
men except that since John Tydswall remained inx the neighborhood,

bhe ray have retained the family property and was therefore the oldest
c tre three. 'mere is no record af any more Tydswalls at Buxton

tatil zuck later and Thamns probably had no children. Richard seems to
kcove teen the ancestor of a small group that seiiled in londonm,
Cartriig?, and Horfolik in the aixteenti: and seventeenth centuries, but
tris tieuch of the faxxily scems to zave died ou: by the middle of tae
latler cantusy.

Jakss Tydsvcli's i)l t=11s a gool deal abc.t the mature and status
c? tke forrily. Therc follovw pertinent parts with slightly modernized
czelliing:

"in the nerme of god am=n the last day of Mx~ch in the year of our
lord god 1558, 1 Yohn Tydswai'. o the pasish of Alton sick in body and
of gccd ~ezermbrance make to god oy last vwill ani testament in =spner and
~orE following. First ( be ueath my coul to gol my Judge saviour and
=odecner Iy dbody to be buried in tke churchyard of Alten Then 1 give

to ry sci Join my tack®™ or fexe duripg the yecr of my leasirg half

* Duxtam, Teroy or Buxton, Norfolk?
% Tock means spot or bliemish.
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dd.ﬁl;&-&.aﬁ@.dcmmammﬁsgrotmda.ndu.l.lthe
pﬂmmmthmprmwmyomtbullochdnl
msixbullockluﬂtbefom'tharsuncornmwhmeandhlm 1
pot and 1 pan. 1 pair sheets 1 mverlet of Windcioth and my blessing.
Also X give to William his son 1 calf and 1 sheep also I give to my

gc1 Jeres L calf and 1 sheep and 1 pair of sheets 1 coverlet of
viadeioth besides his childs part. And the resid:= of all my goods

noc bo ueathed after that my death fueral costs ve discharged I give
o y 1ii 3ons Thoames James and Robert ermally to de divided amongut them
z.d tte other half of all my corm now growing an the ground I glv2 t-
v iii 3aid sons Thomms James and Rodert ..... I crder ard make by true
ané fcithful executors my son John and my brother Thomas cooper of

rxtor ....
.n additioa to the wiil there is svailable a copy of the inventory
” the estate left by John Tydsvall. It lists the followirz property:

First one mare the pair 6s 8a

Tiem 4 oxen 4 (111egidle)
itam 2 kine the pair 6s 84

itam 2 yearling celves the pair 6s 8a

Iccm 7 sheep 8s

Jtem 2 young swine 5s

item b pots, 4 pans, iv otker

sml]l pans of bress and

viii smll ko
Item 5 wizdclothes, 1 blanket,

L coverleis the pair 20
Item 9 sheets the pair 10 8
Item 1 (uwart of corn and mcre 12
{tez wains, plovs, harrows,

yokes, and beans 12
itzm beards, forzs, stocls,

tanks, socac disiies and

-trenchers the pair 2
Item 1 saw, 2 coopers, 1 axe,

l1bill 58

items totals 10 L iS5 s
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In comparing tte inventory with the disposition of the priperty
mentioned specifically in the ¥ill it is easy to see that the joumiar
John Tydswall was thc chief beneficiary. He not orly receired his
father's "tack or fane" but also a good share of the pruperiy clear o®
| funersl costs. The cocial and economic status indicated by thesa
documents seems fairly typical of the yeomen cless o the period. Thi:
was the begimning of the Elizabethan era when Englan? was begirning o
d> great things at hcme and abroad. The stacding of the Tecmaa clazz of
tiu> Zlizabethan ere s well described by Sir Thawes Smith in De
Remblica Anglorua wiitten in 1583, during the lifetime of the younger

Jm Tydswell.

"Those wvhom we call yeomen next urto the ncbility, mights ..tr'
scuires, hava the grcctest charge and dsicgs in tkhe carmccmreclil,
rather are more travailed to serve in it thaz all the rest: os sXel: cpszar
hereafier. I call hin a yeamsn wkom our laws do call legnies: h-minen,

e vord fzaiiiar in writs and incuests, which is = freemen boim iazlis:h,
and cay diswend of hi: own free lani in yearly revsoue to the zw:

of 40 s. ste-ling: this maketh ('if the just value were taker ¢ tc

thz aroporticn of monies) 6 & of our cu-rent momey at this preseas. Thc
scrt of pecple coxfes=: themselves to be no gentlemen, dDut give thz xonow
to all which be cor tz.2 upan them to be geatlemen, and yet tkey have

a certair pre-eminesnc: and more est’mation +»=a labowrers azd

artiricers, and comnci:ly live wealthy, Lemep gooé houses, and ic

their business and tr:-ail tc acquire riches. Thase be {fcr thc

mart) fawers unto ge:tlauen, which with grazing. fre:uenidnz of m:..e‘
and kecping servants not idle as the gertleman doth, but such as ;et coth
their own living and irert of their mmster’'s: by 'these meens ds ccue o
suca veelth, that the;  are able to daily go buy the lands o

voehrifty gertlemen, znd after setting their sons o the schosl =i th2
universities, to the luw of the reelm, cr otharwise lesving taem
sufficient lands vhercon they may live without labour, do mek: their
saicd sons by those mecns gentlemen.”
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At some tims before 1563, the younger John Tydwall moved
ﬁ the ﬁcmty of Kingsley and Ipstofes, 2 few miles to the norib-west of
Alton. His vife died shortly after the move leaving him with thres
sons, William, Rjchard and Thomas to be raised with the assistance
of his Aunt Elyr. John himself died in 1588 and his Aunt Eiyr
lived until 159% when she must have been well past eighiy. Williea,
the eldest son lived-in Middlesex for a2 time and married there in
157S. He apparcatly returned to Staffordshire soon after, vhere he
bkad tvo dsughters, .mnbe'th (b 1578) and Agpes (b 1582) and a
son iu.um (b 1580) who died ip irfancy. William died im 1596, tut
bis wife Karyaict lived on near Kingsley until 1621.

Richard Ticswall, the second soan of John Tydwall, moved ic
Uttoxeter, about ten miles to the 3south of Alton, Gut he and
his wife Anne were both dead by 1537 ard apperently lefi no
childrea since Anne Tidswall's will still exists and the only
Tidswva'l relative mentioned is Richard's brother Thomas.

There is no record of Thomms Tidmmll’é merriage or children,
but he must have had a son or son® since the family name continued
in the locality throughout the 1Tth century. There is & record
of a Willdam PidZeswalle et Ipstones who would have been the
proper age to be a grandson of Thamss Tidswall. William bzod a
son named Thomas which adds to the likelihood of a family ccanection.

The evidencs comcerning the fate of the ‘three brotters of John




Tydwall is less plentiful. There is no further record of hiss.
btrother Thamms and be may well bave died in eerly manhood. without
children. James Tytwall had & dsughter, Elizabeth, vho
mwmammmnm..mmcmmruu
mnmtmumc-hemmmhnmmm d
1550. There is no evidence to suggest that Jugs Tydwall bad any
Robert Tydvall, the fourth brother, probably stayed om at:
Alton. Agaip there is no direct evidence but Ralph Tidemwedl .
of Danstone, in Alton Parish (b.c. 1575-80 d 1656) was of the
proper age to be a son of Robert Tydwall and Ralph in turn had a
son named Robert. Accarding to the records of the reighboring: -
Ellastone Parish, Robert Tideswall was married in 1633 to Marie -
Marsh vho was born in that Parish in 1605. Robert was therefore,
probably born about the same time. Unfortunately, the surviving
recordsdutmhnshdomtbegnmulsalsoihatagrwc;
deal of useful juformation is lost sbout this period in the famil;

history.
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The nﬁlt informative document concerniug the Tideswell
family in Staffordshire in the Seventeenth century is the will
e T1ddesvall which 18 oe file in the collection known
ummﬁmmsmetm, London. The will wes
probated in the year 1656, one year before the eerliest reccrd
of the Tidwell family in Virginia. From it, ope lenras scmethiny
of the economic and social status of Relph Tiddeswall as well
as something about his relatives.

Accarding to the Will, Ralph Tiddeswell vas a vecmen, living

in the village of Denstone.

From the Will and Ellastone Parish records, we can reconstiuct

the following story. Ralph Tiddeswall had two children. Robert
and Joanne. Oa the 18th of May 1629, Joanne married & man marsd
John Coates, a n=mber of one of the established families of

the commnity. On 1 April 1631, they had a son whom they names
Ralph in homor of his grandfather. On the 14th of February 1€:%.
John Coutes died and four days later his wife bore a son vham she
pamed Tchn in memory of his father. Two years later, op 15:a !=y

Ralph Toates, the pamesake of Ralph Tiddeswall died of smellpox.

One can immgine that the widowed mother took her boys hcme to live

vith her father and that they meant a great deal to him. It must

have been a blov to lose his namesake end oldest grandchild. Tais

close attachment #0 the Coates children is reclected im the Pavcred

2635,



treatment given to iohn Comtes in Ralph Tiddeswall's vill.
Jater Joamme Tiddesusll Zcates married a mau pamed Thomas
Spooner, and they had a son uamed Thomas, but he does nct appear
o bave rivaied ‘c:2 loates for their gre.dfather's effecticrs.

Robert Tiddesuali married s gir' npamed Marie Marsh o
26th ‘auuary 163+ buz since they protably iived ln Alton Ferizh
wvhich bas -0 survl.!.g records from that perioi, we Lave no
trace of their ~hildren. It is certaii, however, that they kcAd
male childre: since the Tidswal! nam: appears 1. the records o’
Altca Parish after 1681 (and continued ustil the present time)
and there appears to have been o otler me- of that nane in
Rotert Tiddeswall's generatior in the commurity.

From this poi.it, it is necessary to do some deductiom on
the hasis of scant. ~vidence. From rrcords iu “irginia, we kcov
that Picberd Tidwe L arrived iu the colony sometime tefore Haie
1657. We imow tha'. he came over under i-dernture ard from the
length of his serv.. e we knov that he wvas tetveen the agas af
L ard 2, ez e ~orived. This voull rezn thez he vas arohiyw

“ere tatysen 159 -4 ALY, Thie would paine Wi oo

AppropTia i age tc :ave t2:1 a sco of Fcohart aui iarie Lidiesz1l.

We also k.ov that -icherd nared his sons *ichard, Robert, Peicr -
e*d Johr. Pichard, as we 3ave seea, vas a commo:: family mame.

We kuow of Robert Tiddeswall, ‘chn couid have beea named for -ch:

s Amcvara el e aein

“oates the youuger, and the Alton Parish Church is xnown as St. Peter's.
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Thexe is a ww-mtwmmmmmmte
circumstances of Robert Tiddeswall's family.

Ir, mthehuitofthilnlhe_v:ldence,vemvillﬁgto
wmtmchﬂhdﬂlmlmdwﬁw,‘(m
Ihvefundmmmnhw.t&utamwam. s
comnection could be made), wve have additional s.pport for thc
theory in Ralph Tiddeswall's will and the storr of ‘ohn Coat.:.
Falph Tiddeswall divided the dulk of his property between his son
Robert azd his grandson Jobhn Jout.ea This me:nt that Jom's walf
brother, Thomms Spooner, and the children of fobert Tildeswa '
would be iess favored. Nobert Tiddeswall, when b= made his ¢ i1,
would be faced with the altermative of dividing his half anoag nis
children or leaving it to coe in cxder to avcid breaking it lm >
son-economic urits. Since primo-geuitive wan fre uently ypracticed
i. Engiand that is probably the course that e would have
elected. Faced -iith such a situation, the rounger childreu &
Robert Tiddeswa.' might have been inciined to lock elsewhere for
their fortune. (There is a record of the burial of a Williesz Tidzall
at heckley, fowr miles to the south-west of Alton on Sept. 24, 1671.
This may have bec: the elder scn of Robert Tiddeswall ani ¢ .der
brother of Richari Tidwell)

Based on the above reasoming, we caa assume that Richard




Pidwell, being in his latter teens wken his @grandfather i=d, caw
-‘his nl.d.er cousiu Jobn Coates receive a favored position. The '
M lit\ntion mist have been difficult. The dictacorchip
ot Guvu- m.u vas at ite hegght and the ccmmm‘-y was
- strongly dividsd 1n its loyaJtiea. Onz of the lceal mnor:s
hed bren besieged by‘Qro:mre]J s treops in 1€:7 erd a murbe:: of
people vere kil..ed in the £i;:ting. In such & sitvetion: it wenlé
be only ratiocpa: for & younsz iczn, urcbably of quali:t sensiments,
to seek a change of. fLoroume in Virginia uheré Rovaliet ireswings
p.'edu::immd. Xt vas customary foz." people in such circuzstances
to bj:gﬂ.thgselt'ee to é:ork;for a given pericd of years In raturn
for their puvisa; . end keep during the period of indentuve.

f72other i);'hSrestﬁg fect is that young Joka Ccates prov'ad
Ralp, Tiddecw@lls will in the lcc'esis,stical Court in Lordon
on June 1b.165€. za.ther' than a3 Litchfield, the clczest and
custamery place ’6- cuch ections in the Midlands. ~¥ay &i¢ iie kade
the loag trip t» Lov'an for scwething that he could beve Gunz
close Ly? Did I: go & to Lendun with Richard Tidwell to zee
him safely on tie ship <> Yirw” -

Most of the emigrant: of the period. left Por V:h ginia < rom
eitber Br:lstol cz Lendon. The L‘ity of wistol kept & record of
all emigrants from 165h wtit lete $n the cemtury and Richerd

Bidvell's pame 3-8 not ap;-ea:.- gmong them . The chan.':es erc,
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therefore, that be left from London. A departure ia Jume 1655,
1s consistent with the first record of him in Virginia in 1657.
The rolls of the Hearth Tax for 1656 show a Robert Tidesal:
1iving in Demstone, Staffordshire. 7T)e records seem (ulte
complete and this is the only Tideswcll listed in the vicinity
of Altan. This men could be the som of Raiph Tiddeswell still
living st the age of about sixty. Ou the other hand, he migh:
actuslly be a grandson of Ralph Tidde:wall and elder brother of
Richard Tidwell. As such he would pro’ably have been sbout 30
or slightly over in 1666. It is more )ikely, however, that
this wvas the sou: of Ralph Tiddeswall atd that the William Tidwel:l
buried at Checkley im 1671 wvas the grardson.
From the Alton Parish recards, wvhich begin in 1681, it seeus
likely that Balph Tiddesvall had three ;reat grandchildren of
the Tiddeswal., name living in the Parish. They were Joseph, -cha,
and Margaret Tidswall, all baorm about 1655-1670. They were thne
ancestors of members of the same family still living in tbhe Parish.
Scme readers may be puzzled by the rhange in spelling of
the family name from Tidesﬁll, or same similar variant, to Tidwvell
iy America. Actually there 1s nothing surprising about it. Tae
Tidwell spellirg appears as early as 1<75 when Williiam Tydwail
married in Middlesex County. Although spelled Tidwell it would heve
been prona.mced as "Tide-waell," identica) to the promunciatio: of

"Tydwall” and the only differevre fram Tiddeswall being s droppicg
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of the s sound. The Emglish menbers of the family generally
changed the spelling of the name in the 18th cemtury to econform
tothechn@mmnmgotﬂnmdi;hetmofrm
m&mwm&whmlﬁ_w. The English
members of the family now geperslly spell their oame as Tidswell or
Tidesvell. There are actually records of about twenty various .
spellings of the name in the fifteenth through the seventeenth
centuries, and Richard Pidwell probably used the particular
variant that bappened to have been used on his indemture papers.
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‘The Westmoreland Ccunty Tidwells

In & mamner of speeking, the story of the Tidwell family
an the Horth American Continent really begins in 1635 when 2 young
wen of twenty, named Richerd Eelmes, left London for the coloay
of Virginie. By the decade ct-the 1650's Richard Heimes had
becoae 8 prosperous land-holder in Bortshurberland County, Vixgzinia.
He accuired part of his land by importing immigrents from Enzlend.
According to the law in effect at that tize, any person who
reid the passzge of an immigrant to Virginia would be granted fifty
zeres of land. The mjor erop of the colcny was tobacco, and its
intensive cultivation quickly exhausted the lard, xeking it

necegsaxry for a planter to ecquire pev land constantly. The

larzer plartstions iere kept up in merny ceses through the acquisition
o

land by the imporiation of imrigrants, =nd it wes in accordaace

2i%n this sysvem thaet Nelmes appears to heve operatec his lauil.
During the 1650's, Englard was governsd by the man some

anistorians Lhave called England's dictator, Oliver Cromwell,
4acse rule according to the historian, Janes Truslow Adams,
reachad 1ts mo3t oppressive etege during the years 1656-58. During
th: period of the Jamucrwealth..Y¥irginis vas stror:ly pro-Mooarchy
in 1t Syzpoidhies and tecame the refuge for %any people of royalist
leeninzs. The only way in wbich zany persons could cbtain the

ron.2y to pey their ressege tc the colonles was to coatract with the

{2

g2ats of V rginie vlanters (o serve as lechorers for a certain

. ey




mmber of years in return for monmey, food, ard clothing for the

trip. During the 1650's the mumber of years that the immigrant was
to serve depended upon his age. If he were over twenty-one, he

vas recuired to serve fanr years. If he were betveen twelve and
twenty-one, he served five years, and if he were under twelve

he had to serve seven years. There were few negroes in the colomy
during the seventeenth century, and the plantations had to rely

upon the immigrants for the labor with which to cultivate the

tobacco and other crops. The immigrants in their turn usually

moved on to new country and established plantatiocns of their own,

as socn as their period of service was over. Therefore, the
rejority of the farms actually under cultivation were small or
zedium eized and wvere ~ultivated by the owner himself. According

to cne account--"The seventeenth century was one of rapid immigration
to Virginie, sowe 100,000 colonists arriving between 1607 and the end
of the century. Many were indentured laborers, who were free at

the end of their five years of service* to take up land and marry, a
circurstance that tended to keep Virginia at this stage fundamentally
democratic. BNinety percent of the population were independent small
farmsrs. In 1704, the average number of workers, freeholders, and
slaves on a farm was only 1.5. Negro siaves were not mmerous until

the eighteen;hh century."

* The law of this point varied from time to time.

~ 88—~
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“The representative seventeenth-century houses were of local
materials, chiefly frame cottages of one story besideg the loi't,
with & chimney at each end. There wae no xretense at besuty or
design; even the hames of the most praminent planters wvere simple
and plain. The plantation mansion belongel to a later period.”

"Tn the eighteenth century the tidewater country underieat
u significant change in settlement form and landholding. Tar
moderate-gized farms and smsll one-family farmsteads of the ; :cman
Tarmers gradualily geve way to the extsnsive baronial esvates of
wealthy genclepen-planters who lived in coxparative lwoury
courrounded Ly scores af negro slaves. Tidswater barame aristocratic.
This fa of society;, with its attendaut settiementc {Teatures. wes
eupported or its economic side by an sburdance of ckheap black lator
ané ou its scocisl side by the ideals 2ad tiood of E-glish country
gentienm. Yirginie owes sl of the genteel Finver of 148
society to the cavaliers; for they #xercis:d an influence in he
colary far out of proportion toO their numrers. As the inflw: of
regroes increasad, the flov of vhite immigrants from Englond
creduaily &vindled 2nd eventually ceased. Sleve labor reachel
¢lsastrourly or. the szall landowners, who ware eventunlly ruiied
and forced to emigrste."

“Early in the eightesenth century, land in tidevater Virgilnia

val been large'!y 1laid out in private plantations axé the fr-ciier
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had reached the Fall Line. Aristocrstic Church of England geatlemen
thWcoM@mhMMiﬂmmﬂ
econamic stamp. But defore this group could move on westward te
mmnmmmmmmmmcmw
the Rlue Ridge, a scuthward thrust of Scotch-Irish and Germsns
from Permsylvania, along vitk the unfortumate from tidewater country,
had taken possessicn. mmc«mﬂﬂemratmum
~he frcantier with caxppact coommmities vhose ares should be 2O
scres, shaped like a parallelogram with a fort at the cemtar cf
the village, but the plan was unsuccessful. The colmists migrated
singly and ia groups; and although former neighbors commonly
gsettled in the same general locality, their farmsteeds were for the
st part isclated. Farms were smaller than in tidevater Virginia,
riverine setilement pattern was largeiy absent, subsistence
grain-and-livestcck farming tock the place of commercial tobsced
cultm,nndnegros]immhcung. There vere thus two
“lrginias, unlike in antecedents, habits of thought, religion. and
econaxic interests; and although the integrated farm and isclated
Tarmstesl wvere characteristic of both, the farmstead unity wer=
markedly ic contrast. "

One of the immigrants for whom Richard Nelmes paid passag>
vas Richard Tidweil. This is the earliest definite record that I
have found of the Tidwell family in America. (There is a record




of a Heary Todwell who was brought from England to Gloucester
County, Virginia by Captain Francis Norgan and Ralph Greea ic
1652. In view of the irregularity of spelling in that time, it
is possible that he was a relstive of Richard Tidweli. I have
also found the nsme spelled Tedwell and Tydwell, but in this
book, 1 have changed the spelling to Tidwell vhere other svilence
made it obvious that the psrson cancerned wvas & member of tbe
Tidwell family. In the case af Henry Todweli, I have found ro
other record cancerning him and no Tidwells living during the
seventeenth and eighteenth centuries who were not descendants of
Richard Tidwell.)

On ¥ovember 21, 1657, Richard Nelmes was granted 200 ecres
of land for the tranaportation of four perscns into the colomy.
These were Richard iongdell, John Philpott, Richard Tidwell, and
Alice Meredith. These grants were frequentiy made long afte: the
date of the immigration of the persons transported. 1t woul’ be
perfectly normal for Jelmes to bave received his grant iu la:s 1657
in retwrn for immigrents who arrived in the sumer of 1656.

Helmes brought in four more persons in early 1661. TIf his
usual vors<ing force iuncluded four persons under indenmture, those
imported in 1661 would have probably replaced those imported in 1656.
This ia turn suggesis that the first four wvere expected to serve
a term of 5 yesrs and were therefore between the ages of 12 aad 21
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vhen they were brought in. This would have placed Richard Tidwells
birth date between 1635 acd 164k. This date 1s consistent with marriage
date of Robert Tiddeswall of Denstone, Staffordshire and supports
t}® anpxise that Richard mxy have been & younger som.

Richard T:dwell sppears to have been well regarded by Selraes.
in early 1662, Belmes had received a grant of 40O ecres oo the
Yeocamico river vhich had been made to him origimally in 1652.
Ca Marck 18,1563, Helmes gave 350 acres of this lard %o Richer< Tidwell
and Robert Jeffrice. This gift was prodbably in returm for
2dditional service rendered to Nelmes, but in any case it indicated
a high regard since it wms (uite a choice location on the
teocomico river just a fev miles from its mouth an the Potammc.
Tue river foarmed doth a good barbor and a good avemue for transportation
to other settlements in the colomy. (The tcwn of Kinsale, Va .
aow stands an the property).

The tuwc man sppecred to have farmed the land joirtly umti’
L 67. In thar year, there was a terrible starm (probebdly a tropical
norieane) in the county that 41d great dsmmge to crops and trecs.
“orheps as a result of differences growing cut of the damage
caused by the storm the two men divided the property by survey in
October of that year. At some time before 1670, however, Jeffrice sold

his share of the property to Tidwell and returred to England.
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quummuutnt&mhdmm. Tn October 1671,
he acted as agent for leverton to receive payment for Levertan's
cerop. Qn 26 February 1673, Richard gave a cow and calf to

Samuel's daughter Mary. Ee recorded this gift at the County

Court in the feollowing langunge;

"....% Richard Pidweil...give uato Mar, Levertom, daugptor
of Samuel leverton, cne cow and yearling heifer....out of t&t¢ love and
effecticn ¥ aave urtc the aforesaid Mary. I(m case tae aforszid
tary do depart this life befare she arrives at sixtecn years cf age
ar do die ummarried then the said cow and heifer will revert to
Samuel leverton, son of Sameel Levertom....”

Richard would have been between the ages of 20 and 38 at this
time and therefore a great deal older than Mary lLaverton. He
had already vecome 8 successiul farmer, however. He had bought
out Jeffrice and in 1670 he had bought en additicnal 500 acres
from Martin Cole giving him e total of 850 acres. Eis gift to
Mary suggests that he aiso bhad ample livestock by th:is time.

The exact nmature of Richard's love for Mary leverton camnst
b2 Imown. however, because withia a few years he married a gir!
ramed Arn. Mary may have died or married scmebody else but by
+5T8 Richard had =erried a girl who must also have been much
younger theam ae tecnuse withia th» gext tweaty-five ycars. she

eppsars to liave married three times more.

&




Richard is menticned in other county records. in 1677, a2 vas
auudedaw@.mtmmmml@hemmﬂu
af Willism Clements.

Richard and Ann Tidwell's first child, also nsmed Richard,
vas born in 1679. Another scm, John, and a dsughter, Martha,
probably came next. Another son, Peter, was born in 1688 snd
ancther son, Robert, vas probably boarn after that date.

Richard Tidweil died scmetime between .anmary 1689, when he
p~oved Clement's will and July 1692, when Jchn Minor brought suit
azainst Ann Tidwell ss administratix of Richard's estute. If >e
died in 1550, be would have probably been between 46 and S5 yeurs
of age. Be ieft a substantial amount of strategically locsted
property and five children in the hands of & young and glddy
vidow. The suit brought by John Minor was only the rirst of many
1ifficulties. I 1696, young Richard Tidwell, then 17, asked the
Tourt of Westmoreiand County (Westmcreiand was split off from
Jorthmmberland Co.in 1663) to appoint a guardian to
protect his estate from Lockley (‘ome 1in who “ad married ais mrither.
in 1693, Peter Tidwell, then 10 years cid, was bound out ss an
apcreatice to Jfohn Clement, perhaps & relative of Wiliiam Clemeu:.
In 1699, samecne brought suit cn bebxlf of young Robert Tidwell
against Andrev Delabree vho wvas nov married to the former Amn
Tidwell. It appears from the recard that she had been married to
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Jemes lane previcusly. Ghe appears, therefcre, to have had four
Fusbends in quick succession.

In 1703, Robert Tidwell petitioned the court to sppoint
his brother Richard as his guardisn. At scme point sbout this time,
Sohn, Petey, and Martha Tidwell all seem to bave disappeared. In
1715, Richard brought suit on bebalf of the estate of Johm Tidvell ]
and in 1716 LOOO lbe. of tobactco was swarded to him from the

“

guardiane on the grounds that “the said Juhn Tidwell hoth not
tzen heard of fcr many years”. In 1718, Richard and Robert
Tiduell vere swarded 3000 lbs., af tobaceo together on Lehalf of
Fcter Tidvell with the statement, "n2ither is it here knowm
vnether ke be living or dead." This todacco was valued at 18
e2111ings per hundred lbs, mmiting this part of the eziale

e.uml to 36 pounds sterling. Itthia-recalcmtedﬁsaatim

cf the total estate aside from the land which Richard Tidwell appeers -

e

to have received intact, the total estate of the elder Richard
T1dwell would Bave included 850 acres of land plus cther property
valued et 180 pounds sterling--a substantial estate fxr those Iays.

Zt appears Trom the foregoing that the young Tidiell family
aadhafdgoiﬁgtarnw&aninspitedﬁegoodamrtmd.eby
{aeir father. Richard seems to have retained the land owned by his
Znthar. Therc 18 no record of Robert Tidwell's share cther than the
judgment in 1718 but he may have received tobacco or other property - -




as his portion. He appears to have become a steady and successful
planter in Westmoreland County, but Richard had & more varied career.
Kcmuhnebem‘bmtehmw@nmmﬁﬁerm.
Thers is no record showing where he lived after this father's
deeth, but life must have been unpleasant in mny respects if

he were fcrced to seek court protection agairst the mn his motrer
beé married and to act for his brother in constant meneuvering
ageinst her.

In 1705, when Richard was 26, the Virginia House of Burgesscs
passed a lav estadlishing a mmber of market towns in Virginia
inciluding, "on the Potomac River, Yohocomico, upon the land of
Richari Tidwell in Westmoreliand.” The lav alszo stated. "That at
Ychocomico to be called Kingsale (now Kinsale) and to have Tuseday
dnd Seturday on each week for marist days and the nineteenth day
of October and four following days, exclusive of Sunday. anmmlly
their fair...”

The Comnty Court was directed to purchase S50 scres of land
to form Ghe gite rortﬁntm. This wvas apparently done since
Kisecale Virginia stands to this day on the property on the Yeocoamico
rirer cnce owned by Richard Tidwell. It is assumed that the
eseblishnent of such & town on one's property would have been
des:iirable. Iixfact,:l.fcolon:h.l politics vere anything l1ike moderm
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rolitics, ithMtbtitmachniée plum. It would have
increased traffic in the vicinity, brought in neighbors, imcreased
thevaluectnenrbylmd,anlprovﬁedshndymkntforthe
mmdmmmmwmwwmfm
England. B8ince Westmoreland County wmas siutated in the Horthern
Tieck of Virginia, (the land between the Potcmac and Rsppaharnock
Rivers) it would have come originally under the propricters of the
Forthern Neck and it is therefore probable that Robert Carter,
es agert for the proprieters, would have had a great deal of
inflvence in maming the location to de selected for the new
market town. Certainly under normal circumstances the wishes of the
grzst land-owners such as the Carters and the leses wou'd have bzen
ccusidered to a large degree in the selection of the site.

Cn the other hand, the establishment of market toms
svch as Xinsale was part of a policy to encourage the creatiom < a
zerchant class and a diversified ecconomy which would help free
Virginia from its dependemnce on the sale of tobacco in England.
7his policy was cpposed by strong inmterests, both in Eigland and
ir. Virginia, aad the tobacco economy retaimed its hold on the Tidewater
country uatil the time of the Revolution. In such a situation
it 18 difficult to evaluate the position Rickard Tidwell and
determine the effect that the establishment of Kinsale mmst
hsvehadoni:isfortunee.




It is possible, however, that the effect of the town was
mmsmw,uhedoe;mtmtobanw
greatly. He sold additional partions of land originally inherited
fram his father, until in 1719, at the ag= of 40, he scld the
resainder of the arigimal farm on the Yeocamico and moved to
Stafford Gounty, farther up the Potamac. In 1721, he sold the
150 acres that remained fram the S00 acre tract bought by ks
father in 1670 and from this time on appears to have had no
contact with Westmoreland County.

There is no record of the date of Richard Tidwell's
marringe. Sometime before he sold his Westmoreland property,
he had married & voman named Sabrina. Judging from the age
of their children, they were probably merried sometime shortly
befors 1710. 1In other words, Richard may have delayed marriage
until about the ege of 30, perhaps as a result of tae unsettled
circunstances surrounding his fathers estate. _Itiaintereltim
to note also that he sold his property ard left the County in the
waollovingthezetﬂmtafma&nllspurﬁanoftheutate_,
the fipal action that culmimated at least 26 years of litigation
follovirg the death of the elder Richard Tidwell.

In the meantime, vhile Richard Tidweil's fate wvas drawving hin
swvay from Westmoreland County, Robert Tidwell's affairs were
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developing in an emtirely differemt directicm.

Mwmmmmmwabmmtmtnt
Richard T4dwell was marrisd about 1710. Eince Robert had chosen
Richard es his guardian in 1703, they probably lived together.
In 1T15, they acted together in the matter of Peter Pliwell's
inheritance. Yt is possidble, therefore, that Robert lived with
Richard as long as Richard remsined in the county. There is mo
record that Robert Tidwell owned land umtil 1734 when gt about the
age of b4, he dought 173 acres o Marhodoc™ Creek in Westmoreland
Canty from Issac Allertomn. Yet in 1721, he had the Westmoreland
County court estimete the age of a servant boy. (This was
frequently necessary because age determined length of servitude
and the age of many of the children brought over uncer indemture
tas uncertain)

It ie alsoc fairly certain that Robert Tidwell wvos married
socetime before 1720. His eldest son, Williem Carr Tidwell,
vitnessed a deed for him in 1738. This suggests that the san
zust have been born at leest as early as 1720. Robert married
dannah Carr, tre daughter of William Carr, a prosperous planter
of Westmoreland County. Carr had registered a catile brand in her
oame on Apri! 16th 1701, suggesting that she may have been born
several years before that date. William Carr's widcw died in 1726,




and her will mentioned cther childrea, but did not wemtiom
 Bammeh, suggesting that Bamnmah had already received her share of
the estate.

From these scattered bits of information one might surmise
the following course of events. nic.hu'd Tidwell held the lard lef%
by the elder Rickarc and provided & home for his yourger brother.
Robert c.atimued to 1ive with Richbard and Sabrins Fidwell,
helped with the facm and the legal actionc until sbout 1718 cr
1729 he wes recdy to marry Hammah Carr, at which point Richnrd sold
the rexziaing property, divided the proceeds with Robert and left
“he Comty. Robert in turn mzrried Hanmah end tock over the
manegenent of parts, at least, of the Carr property.
Wectmoreland County, Virginia, Deeds and Wills, Boox 1l4: page 49.
In the FHere of God imem, I Robert Tidwell of Cople parish in
VWestmorelané Coumty in the Colcny of Virginia, being weak of body but
of sound end perfect sence and memory (blessed be God for it) do make
ordain aund ceclare this o be my last Will & testament in manner and
form following hereby zrevoking and making void alli Zormer Wil s and
teatarcnts bty me mmnde, dated at my house in the parish and Ccuaty
afcresazd this twenty seventh day of September in the year of Our
Lerd Christ One thousand seven hundred and fifty seven, and in the
m’wf&Stywdmrei@ansmmi@mce@gem
second of great Britain France and Ireland King Pefauier of the
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faith & Duprimis, I bequeath my soul unto God that gave it me
boping by his infinite mercy and my dear Seviocur Jesus Chriets
intercepion and the merits of his passion, it shall at the last
day be reunited to my body and glorified. And I will that ry body
have Christian and decent burial in my garden. Item I will

that all my just debts be truly paid, and ss for my worldly goods
w7ith which it hath plessed god to bless me beyond any desert cf
mine I give apd bequesth them together with my lande as followeth
¥iz 1 Ttex I give and bequeath to my dear & loving vife Hannan
T{dvell all the land vhereon Y now live together with the lands

¢ purchssed of Peter Dunkin during her matural life, and after her
death 7 give & becueath the said lands to my son Jobn and his heirs
forever, Item I give and bequeath to my som William Carr Tidwell
allwlandzin&cho‘uqueneck,tndinwewlmﬂllinnshmld
die without heir law’ully begotien of his body, ther and in such
cage T give wy said lands in Machotique neck to my cdaughter
Elizabeth and her heirs forever, Item I give to my said son Johm
% his heirs Zorever ihe folloving nmegroes Judith George and Lucy
cnd Y give the first child (with its increase) that shall be born
of either of the said aegro vamen Judith ar Lucy to my grand
caughter Fannah Tidwoll and her heirs forever, Item I give and
beyueath to &y £on William and his heirs forever the following

regroes Jack, Jean ard the wench called Plimbers Judy. Item I

Live ond bequeath to nry good davghter Elizebeth the following iegroec.




Deniel, Sett, James Camncn, Natt, Kepish, Frank, and a child called
Tom&'own,incasenvsaidmmnnlho\nddieviw helir

or heirs then and in such case I give the said three negroes alreedy
given him to my son Jchn and Elizabeth to be equally divided hetween
them, and if my daughter Klizabeth should die vithout heir o heirs,
then and in such case I give the geven negroes already given rer to
oy sons Johna & William & their heirs forever to be equally divided
>etween them, Item I give and bequeath to my loving wife her .cho:lce
of all my negores for to choose out two which she is to bave the use
of during her neitural iife and after her decease to returm to the child
<o vhom they shall heappen to belong by my becuests. T desire that my
executors hereafter named may purchase a negro fellow vith wwmt
—opey I have in the house vhich is about forty six pounds, and if that
cm  should not be sufficient to purchase a good young negro
feuow,wvillanddesimistbttheirlhallbe'nonéynhed

cut of 1y crops tc meke up the sum that shell be wanting in ™Iking
chat purchese vhich caid negroe fellow I give and bequeath to &y
sca Willian & his heirs forever, and in case that my said son Willism
:23l1l1 die vithout lawfull hei> or heirs then and in such case I

give the said negroe to my son John. I order that my som William shall
P2y to my executors hereafter named the money that they shall
cdvaance out of my crope for to pay for the fellow I desired to be

Furchased Tor him. item I give to John Justis my fustian coat 3




.ticken wsistcost, bears skin coat, camblet umiscoal, ﬁo pair of
clo‘thomeches,htsthmmnmkingcnndmefinelhirtm'I
desire tket he may have alloved cut ofq_y estate working cloaths
for pext year suitasble for one of his employment, Ttem I give &
bequeath to Xctharine Jenkins ane cow & clf & a bed and fwraiture.
If my daughter should choose to give Catharine Jerkins the negroe
girl called Frank I give her to the said Katharine Also, aad to :er
heirs forever toegiher with the irncrease of the said megrce, dbut
if it should so hsppen that my daughter Elizabeth as before
menticned should give the said Katharine the said negro girl

then and in such case my vill and desire is that the said Katharine
shall nol have the cow and calf & bed & furniture already given
her - Item I give to mxy loving vife Hanneh Tidwell the use of all
my stocks of horses, cattle, hogs, sheep and the use of all my
househald goods & furniture together with everything else upon

my plantation, during her matural life, and af'ter her death

my will and desire is that all my stocks of horses, cattle, nogs,
cheep and houshold furniture & be ecually divided between my
three children, Jobn, William and Elizabeth. ltem I give and
begueath to my daughter Elizabeth my riding hourse called Jockey
after tche death of my wife. [ order my estate not to be sppraised.




lastly I oxrdain, emmmw#m.rm&nnm
exscutors of this my last will ani testament to act as such & as
In Witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal ag-eeing &
wmmumm.mwu&mw'mms
testament) the day & year first sbove written

his
Robert R Tidwell  (Seal)

Signed sealed & delivered
by the said Robert Tid-
“ell as and for his last
vill & testament men-
tioned in the wiithin three
8ides in the presence of
us vho were present at
the signing and sealing
therecof.

Jos Lane

Stephen Baley X his mark
Jaohm Justis




Vestmorland Ct. At & court held for the eaid County the 26th day
of July 1761. This will of Robert Tidwell decessed was presented
into Court and sworn to by William Carr Tidwell one of the executars
therein named the same being proved by all the vitnesses thereto ws
admitted to record, and upon motion of the said exor and his perform-
ing what the lsv in such case required certificate is granted him
for obtaining a probate thereof in due form.
| Test: George Lee Ct C W

Recorded the 2kth
August 1761
26th Jan 1766

In cbedience to an order of Westmoreland Court being date the

Twenty nineth Day of May 1764 we whose pames that is under writtem
wvere appointed by the Courts to appraise and allott the Estate

of Robert Tidwell in current momey.
2 cows & Calves 3/10/0 1 Yok Oxen 5% 1 steer 2/5 & 10/15/0
1 horses cov 1/10/0 1 se=mll bull 15 Cowhide b/ 2/9/0
Parcel of old Casks 12/ a Bed, bedstead, & bed card 10/ 1/2/0
Some lLumber 1/3 1 small scuare table 64 -1/1/9
9 sheep at 5/2/5/0 1 Yoke Qxen d6 1 steer & 3 11/5/0

2 cows & 3 1 Heffer & yearling 1/15 amnl/m-rers 6/5/-
1/10

1 young cow 1/10 - 1 Do 1/10-1 cow and Calf 1/15 6/5/-
, 2 bulls 1/5




1 yearling 7/6 Pi.i.rCort'Huehli hTubes L B1Do 3/ 2/10/6
L small cask 1/3 & parcel of casks 1/10 9 hoes 1/16 3/7/3
2 iron pestles 8-1 iron from () 1/6 4 parrov axes 10/ -/13/6
1 Pair Rouling Screvs 1/6 1 Brosd Axe 5/3 3 Iroa Wedges -/i1/6
1 griddle 1/3 2 hard savs 2/ 1 Gun barrell 2/3 0ld gun 12 1/4/6
1 tea kettle & stand 12/6 94 old iron st. 3% - 1/3/6 1/16/0
Fleshing knife and old drawing kmife 2/ Tir coffee pot 2/6 -/%/6
36th of old Penter at 99--1/7 43 d at 1/-2/2 17 do I7ly3- &11/3
3

Tin more 4/ Padr cotton cords 5/ Pr woal do 3/6 -'12/3
Eell nettle skillet 10/ 1 Do 7/6 1 grubby hoe & old 1/1/6
needing U/

Robert Tidwell appears to have made & success as a planter.
Ee bought 173 acreas on Machndor Creek in 1734 and bought edditiooal
land on the Romiai river in 1738. When he died in 176i, he
lei't, > addition to his land, property valued at nearly 120 pounds
8tcrling, three negro slaves valued at 80 pounds apiece not allocated
in his will and 18 other siaves bequeathed by name to his heirs.
(Zais was about double the average mmber of slaves held in the
county at this time) His will also mentions that, in 1757 at the time
ii wvas written, he had 46 pounds in money in his house. Ee seexs
tc have becce part of the slave owning gentry of the tidewater
vbile his elder brother had contimued in the pattern of the independent

faimar.
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Robert Tidwell had three children, William Carr Tidwell,
bora sbout 1720, a younger son, John Tidwell, probably barm after
1721 and a dsughter Elisabeth Tidwell. John must have been becra
after the last contact between Richard and Robert Tidwell because
Richard also seems to have had a son named John, and they woild
probably bave avoided this confusion in mames if one or both of
the boys had been born while the fathers were still in caaxtact.

Jdmf.l‘:l.dvell married a young widov about 1755. Annma Barbare
Muse, daughter of Willism Must had married Joseph Sanford
about 17+4. The Saxfords had two children, Joseph and Redbecca,
but the elder Joseph Sanford died in 1751. John and Anna Barbara
Muse Sanford TiGwell had three daughters, Sennah, Elizabeth,
and Barbara. Flizabeth later married a cousin, Thams Muse snad
Hanman was adopted by Caledb Lindsey of Essex County, Virginia
and later married his nephew Reuben Lindsay. (Caieb Lindssy vas
Harmah Tidwell's uncle by marriage and he may therefore have
married Elizabeth Tidwell, daughter of Robart Tidwell and sister
of John and William Carr Tidwell.) Barbara Tidwell remmined
unmarried and died about 1788 or 89. Rebecca Sanfcrd married
Richard Dogzier.
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Westmoreland County Imventory Book covering 17€6

Tidwells Adm.nistrnticng Dr. The Estate of Mrs. Anne
Account Barbera Tidwell decd. 1In
Account with Vincent Mar-
madukes action Cr.

1786
Decebr 4 To paid William Sanford proved Account No 1 1-h-h
To paid Daniel Marmaduke Do 2 €-10-0
To paid Vincent Redman Do 3 1-2-11
To paid John Rowand Do k 6-13-10 1/k
/ paid To/Sarah Marmaduke pr Accounmt 5 0-10-0
To paid Joseph Pierce pr proved Account 6 2-6-2
To paid Johr Griggs pr Do 7 1-11-0
To paid for crying the Estate 1-0-0
To 1 shcat not found as charged to
Thoras Muse in hiz purchase 0-8-6
To paid the Clerk of Westmoreland for
Recording Invemtory 250W Tob. 1-0-3
To paid Thomas Muse for his wife's legacy
due from the Estate Jno. Tidwell dcd. 5«G-11
To paid John Wilsam do do do i5=9-11
To paid Reuben Lindsay 9-0-0
To Thorms Chilton 2ond with Interest 8-1-1 3/%
To Camissicn and Troudble 7-0-0
To paid Wm Robinsar Dozier account
300w Crop Tob at 20/
Balance due the Estate Anne B. Tidwell Decd. 35-19-10
B 111-4-1C
1786
Decr 5 By Amount Sele of the Estate & 111-4-1C

John Tidwell apperently died sometime between 1758 vhen he leased
soz2 land to Thomas Palmer and 1760 when his mother's will wvas
writtea. He wes prcbably about 35 years old vhen he died. HNis
widow lived until 1756 and appears to have been well taken care of

from the eccncric starndpoint. Tax records shov that Acna Barbars
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Tidveil ouned seven slaves, four horses, and 11 cattle in oy 50
Although that vas not great wealth it was a coaxfortabhie situction
for s wvidox. The same recaord shows that one “ree male cves
twenty-cne was living with her. That mxy bave been hex soxc- -
Joseph Sanford.

Amne Barbtera Tidvell msy be comnected with coe of :ther aystaries
of this period, mamely, who was the vife of Willimm Carr Tidwei}?
Although the oldest son, he was not married when his father's
will was written in 1757. After reaching maturity, William Tarr -,
Tidwell had apparently settled as & bachelor on the Fachaodc:. Croek {
property bought by his father in 173:. In 1756, he bought *2is
property “rom his father.

Westmoreland County Record Book 4 p. 214

Koov all Men by these presents that I John Williams of Cople _ ;
Parish azd County of Westmoreland Hath this day Darhained and sodd q
and do hereby Bargain and Sell unto William Carr Tidwell of the ;
Parish and County aforesaid cre Cowv and Y=arling, Ore Mare; Two sows
and twelve shoats, Two feather 3eds and Furniture, one Irom pot, i
one Ke*tle, ore Skillite, one griddle, ome Prying pan, oce plomgh, .
two axes, four hoes, three Pewter dishes, three piates, cne laxrge -
Earthen Jar, All my crop of Carn, that is now on the ground and alil thg
rest of my effects wholely and Solely that he the said Johs Wikliams s
now possessed with of what nature and kins soever. For the Jonsdiderstion
of sxiteen pounds current mopey of Virginia, paid before-the Ensealing
and ZTellverircg of these preseats. Ard I do hereby warrent ard defevd)
a.l the above nenticned things to the said William Carr-Pidwell his |
Heirs etc. from the claim of any perso vhatsoever. Tm Witness- '
wherec? i have ge* my hand an affixed my seal this twenty third day

of June One thousand seven hundred and sixty nige.

In presernce of :

Joa. land d John Williams - seal

Jeo. Turberville

Jno. Turberrille
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The house occupied by William Garr Tidwell and probably built
by him survived umtil 1947 when it burmed. It was a four room, two
story house with a chimray at sither end and a gently sloping roof.
One fireplace vas about eight feet lomg. Accarding to local
tradition, this house wvas known as the "Menmor House.” It was the
centnlpaﬂd-eonpluctphntaummmingsmhuutchgn,
smoke house, laundry, etc., whose foundations are still turied cearby -
although the buildings themselves disappeared long 2go. This house
vas not a mansion like Stratford or Nomini but it was & neat and
prospercus esteblishment.

Willimm Carr Tdvell was a gentlemen planter, ssighbor to the
Vashingtons, Lees, Turbervilles, and &rters His property on
Machodoc Creek eventually eacarpassed 373 acres and became the site
for & small village that is still knovn as Tidwells', Virginia. The

survival of the name of the locality suggests that the place must have
had some local prasipence.
William Carr Tidvell would have been about kO uhen his father died.

Zis so® Reuben Tidwell was born in 1766 or 1767. Jn other vords, he
as provebly married sometime between 1760 and 1765 and bad arly one
child. BHe died in 1774 end although he left considermble property there
is 10 record of a Mrs. Tidvell vho can be -identified as his widow
axcept for a brief entry in the accounting remdered by the executors

of his estate. The nnly Tidvell widow living during the period




that appears in the records wvas Anne Barbara Tidwell, widow of John

®idwell. Could it be that William Carr Tidwell married his brother's

vidov axd became her third busbend? If that were the esse, she would

Bave been about forty when Reuben was born, accounting perbaps

for the failure of William Carr Tidwell to have more than one child.
William Carr Tidvell's vwill wvas probated cn March 29, 1TTh.

Cn Pebruery 25, 1774, Philip Pithian, tutor to the Carter children

at Bomini Hall a fev miles awvay, mention®sd in his diary that there had

been a seriocus outbreak of fever at "Mr. Atwells on the Potomec."

He reported that the fever vas “Jail" fever (known today as Typhus)

caught from s ship and that many of the slaves vere sick. In early

March, he menticned tiat the fever wvas continuing at "Mr. Atwells.”

The Atwells lived across Machodoc Creek and upstream from the

Tidwells. There may well have been fever at both places or Titlian may

bave confused the names. It would have been normal for ships to go

to Tidwells, since it remmined a river port of call umtil 1907, but

£t would bave beew more FIELLeult Tor & ship to Tesch Atwalls.

Thae coincidence in dates is interesting in any case, and William Carr
Tidwell may well have died at about 54 years of age of the "jail" fever.
Reuben Tidwell iuherited the majority of his father's property
and the executors of the estate kept n detailed account of transactions

o2 his behalf. He was tutored for several yeu-s and provided with

siiver shoe buckles and other luxuries. In 1786, his personal property




e

include_d5horm,ﬁcattle,9g_rovnllsmandnshvechﬂ.dren.
This was vell above the average mmber of slaves owned in the County.

On December 2, 1788, Reuben married Winifred Coles of
Northumberland Co., then a girl of 15. They had ampls means
and good comnections in the commmity. Vest-noreh.nd County suffered
bad times tnfter the Revolution, however, and began to fall igto
stzgnatdon and decay. Many aof the people left the County ani those
who remained vere in greatly reduced cireumstances. (Robert B. lee
wvas born at Stratford nearhy, but his family suffered a similar
misfortune.) Reuben Tidwell mamaged to get by but he sold off some
of his slaves and finally on February 12, 1812 he sold the entire
property oo Machodoc Creek for $3,917.75 or $10 per acre. This 1s
the last record of the Tidwell family in Virginia.

According to the census of 1810, Reuben Tidwell had two sons
and three daughters but their names were not given. Tenpesses was
being s=ttled at this time and there is a record of a land grant
%0 Reuben Tidwell in Warren Co., Tennessee in 1824. There is also a
record of service performed by Mark Pidweil in the Temnessee Militia
during the War of 1812 and Mark appears to have been Reuben Tidwell's

eldest son.




Philip Fithiam's Journal p. 208 and 209 16 July 1T7h
Seturday 16

The Colonsl, Ben and myself rode on Horse-back about Six to
Mr. Atwells' four lusty, hearty)bnhadgme on foot before who
vere Oarsmen. Here ve were to euter a Doat never Rowed before
and proceed dovn the River Machodock to Mr. Carters .Btore-!ouses
vhich are ey buildings near the mouth of that River--But I am
going to veature upon & description of a Scepe which I am sure I
vill not do Justice to--A Scetch of three Rivers--Their Besutiful
aanks--Several Gentlemen's Seats-- Their commodious harbours--

In particular toat acz2r whick ¥r. Zarter is erectinzg Store-Hcuses--

™c whole &= %2 be on account of our perecrination this 16th burning
day of July 1774--With several remarks.

I have said, that we rode or Horseback to Mr. Atwells
wvhere we were to go on board and have our Horses sent back--This House
is calied six Miles from the mouth of Machodock--It stands on the
ank of the River; The ['cat that carried us is built for the purpose
of carrying the young ledies and others of the Femily to Nomini
'h-‘uch--lzt is a light neat Battoe elegently painted and is rowed
with four Oars--We vent on board; The Sum beamed down upom -us
but we had each an Umbrella--The River is here about Qunshot over;

the banks are nretty low, but hard to the very Water--1 was delighted




to see Cornm and Tcbaceo growing, or Cattle and Eheep feeding along
the Brink of the River ob both sides, or else Groves of Pines, Sorins, and
Oaks growing to the sides of the Dank--We passed by an elegant small
Seat of Mr. Beal; it was small, but it vas neat--We arrived at Mr.
Carters Store-Houses in 50 minutes, they are 5 miles from Mr. Atwvells,
and coe from Ptomock--These Bouses are buildings for therecepticns

of Iron, Bread, Flour and there are two Houses each 46 Feet long dy 20--
tbvy-tapd'stthenottonur(mm:huaufgmdsmiom harbour--
Here ve treakfasted at ten—At twelve we pushed of.rx"cnﬂ.lereaml
romdbym&ith':cjnbcnndmn@tdhnmomm&e.bmd
beautiful Potoumock--1 thinkitnhcetenlﬂ.lesortm;cm:

has a fine high hard Bank; no Marshes-- but Corufield, Trees, or Grass!
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The Upland Tidwells

while Robert Tidwell, the younger son of Richard Tidwell,
remained in civilized, settled, and fashionable Westmoreland County,
Richard Tidvell IT, uds elder brother, was following the route of
migration which led to the settlement of the piedmont and Shenandoeh
Valley of northern Virginia. Robert Tidwvell became & well-to-do
member of the Tddevater Gentry but Richard Tidwell and his scas,
vhile originally well off, slid down the levelling scale of {rontier
bardships and misfortune to become yeoman farmers once more. Just
as the Tideswall ancestors from wvhich they had came, these Tidwells
lived on the land, scmetimes richer and sometimes poorer than the
averaze of the frontier society in which they and their descendants
found themselves for the next century anc a half.

As indiceted earlier Richard Tidwell moved into Stafford County
seamtime about 1719. The decade between 1710 and 1720 vas & pericd in
wvhich a large number of the planters left the tidewvater and moved
into Stafford County in search of new land. At that tilﬁS”:a.f‘fOl‘d
County included the entire fromtisr area of Northern Virginia and the
supply of new land in the older countriss wvas nearing exhaustion
as a2 result of the intensive cultivation at Tobacco.

Richard Tidvell therefore settled in Stafford County in the midst
of many former neighbors from Westmoreiand. This group may well have
included relatives by marriage as well. (The Carr and Muse families

vere both represented, for example). In 1723, Richard received a
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grant from Thomas, Lord Fairfax, the Proprieter of thc Nortbern Neck
for 273 Acres in Stafford Counmty. This was probably the land os which he.
mmmw.m&MMeniumto

settle on the land and then apply for the Grant.

In 1725, be was Granted an additiocosl 5T9 3/% acres and in 1730
ancther 553 acres. In 1726, he sold 370 acres to Richard Todd and
mlmusoldsqoacreitoJomnmu. In 1733, he sold 5TO 3/b
acres to Thomas Osborme. It is difficult to reconcile these
transactions since the (uantities sold do not agree vwith the purchases
recorded. Prince William Coumty had been split off from Stafford
Co., in 1731 and in 173} Crange County was split off in turn. There
are traces of the family of Richard Tidwell in the records of all
these counties, but unfortunately there are sericus gaps in the
records as a result of damage received during the Civil War.

In any case, Richard Tidwell owned large tracts of land, much
afitintheamﬁhempsrtothtism?rﬁmiﬁluﬁcm

vith the county seat at Manassas, Virginia. One perplexing aspect
of these records is that the rent roles (tax recards) of Stafford

County have survived, but they do not show Richard Tidwells name.
If he had been a horzal settler owning over 1,000 acres of land he

could hardly have escaped peying taxes. Although newv country it was
sufficiently well settled for tax laws to be enfarced. Perhaps,

as indicated in consection with the establishment of the town of
Xinsale, Richard Tidwell had some connection with the Proprieters of

the Noithern Neck which would have exempted him from paying taxes.

&




The first recard of Richard Tidwell's children occurs in connection
with the sale of land to Jobn Homes in 1731 when "Richard Tidwell Jr." (IXI)
vitnessed one of the sigmatures. This -@ture was also vitnessed
by Joseph Helms, and the Tidwells sppear to have been closely
associated with the Helmes family for mafy years thereafter, even
arfter moving to Sough Carolina.

This sigoature by a third generation Richard Tidwell (III)
would probably indicate about 1T10-12 as the year of his birth. The
next record of the younger Richard Tidwell (III), occurs in the
acecounts cf the Orange County merchant, Adam Reid. According to these
reccrds Richard Tidwell Junior opened an account with Reid oma
October 19, 1738. He bought mails, cloth and pins. Qa November 30, 1738
ae bought salt, two axes, powder and shot, bed ticking, linen, and
adiitional cloth, On the wame date, he delivered a bushel of
vheat tc credit against his account. These purchases suggest that he
wvas setting up bhouse-keeping and the cloth and pinl suggest that he
was reecently married.

Qa February 8, 1739, Rickard Pidwell, Junior, returned to Reid's
store accompanied by his father Richard Tidwell (II) his younger
drother, John Tidwell, and Joseph Helms. He applied 211 1bs. of pork
against his account, Joseph Belms paid 4 shillings and 7 pence on
213 behalf, and his father paid the balance of the sccoumt, 1 pourd-

1 shilling and T3 pence.
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At the ssme time the group mede some imteresting purchases.
'Richard T4dwell Junior bought & (mmrt of rum, 400 nails and drew
16 shillings in cash. Johm Tidwell bought sheeting and thread.
‘Tt looks very much as if same celebrstion, such as a vedding vere
in the offiag. -.Wmm.mmw'ﬁmm
Junior end a dasughter of Joseph Helms and the earlier purchases had

been made for the purpose of preparing a house in advance. It is
possidle, however, that John Tidwell was the one involved since he was

nov making purchases similar to those made by his brother four months
earlier.

This is the last record of Richard Tidwell (II). EHe would have
been approximately 60 years cld and the younger Richard would zave
been about 28. It is impossible to determine from the records vhere
the Tidvells lived at this point. Orange Coumty included a great deal
of territory vhich later wvas split off into nevw counties. The majority
of surviving records during the remainder of the time the Pidwells
stayed in Virginia occur in Frederick Coumty in the northern end of
the Shenandceh valley. Richard (II) probably died shortly after this
time. Richard Tidwell Juniar (IZI) bought 4 bushel of salt in Jume 1739
andappearnnevertohaveretmedtothe-stom. Be left behind him a
debt of & pounds, 8 shillings, 94 pemce. In July 17480, the Qrange
County Court issued a sumnons to Richard Tidwell Junior to amswer for

thic debt, but the original summons is stiil in the Court Piles and




there 18 no record that it wvas ever delivered. Perbaps bhe lived too
far avay for easy delivery and it was forgotten in the press of
Sheandcah valley. If Richard Tidwell, the father, had remained in
the vicinity he might vell have paid the bill, as he bad paid part
of the earlier ome.

This incident is all too typical of the case in which muny
settlers found themselves. Manufactured goods vere expensive, and farm
products wer: excessively chesp. Richard, Junior, received oaly
2 shillings and 6 pence credit for 211 pounds of pork. Efeven pounds
af pork for a penny:

As a result of this situstion, pins the constant threat of
difficuities with the?rcnchmdlndim,ﬂ_ltoon.wl;tt]m fell
into debt with the merchants. In 174k, a judgment of 3 pounds was
rendered against Richard Tidwell (IIT) in the Frederick County Zourt.
In 1755 in Frederick Coumty, John Tidwell also was sued for debt,
but he appears to have settled the suit out of court. In 1745, also
in Frederick Coumty, another brother, Francis Tidvell was sued for
a debt of 2 pounds, 12 shillings, and a penny. He failed to appear
in%trtandnjudgenentmmndmdmmtm. Perhaps many of
these debts could have been paid but in viev of the prices paid and
changed, the settlers may have felt cheated and therefore little

‘r:iined to pay in full.




The fourth brotber, William Tidwell, was probably next in age
had sons nemed William and John, but Richerd's son vas probebly
born before he left Westmoreland County since Robert's son wes
alvays known by his full pame William Carr Tidwell, apparently
ir an attempt to distinguish him from the other William. The two
Jchn Ticwells were prphabiy younger sons born after comtact was lost
ip 1721.

A pap in the Prederick County Court Eouse shows & "Plot of the
Carter Grant.of 50212 acres made in the year 1740." This map shows
nroperty belonging to William Tidwell loceled on the west side of
theShemndoahriverJustaouﬂxaanhby's&ptbroughthempcRidge
nountains. The road from Washington to Winchester, Va., nov passes
through this gap &nd crosaes the Shenmandosh just north of the site
of Villiam Tdwell's property.. The msp also shova the names of
neighbors as Helms, John Rout, and Samgpel Earle. A house dbelonging
to Lord Pairfax was located just across the river.

This property may well have been the last property owned by
Richard Tidwell (YI) and inherited by William Tidwell after his
Tather's death in 1739 .or 40. The proximiiy to Lord Fairfax's
Property -also supports the idea of some commection between Richard
Tidwell (il) and the proprieters of the ¥orthern Neck.




!nea.rlyl?ﬁ3,ﬁﬂlin'ﬂdwllmewpomtedmeerda
streteh of raod that passed nearby. In 1Thl, he bought 100 acres
from Jacob Funk, wvho ran a mill nearby. Ee also appears to have been
married by 1744 since laier in that year his vife Mary appeared as
witness in Court. In 1753 he sold the 100 acres and in the following
Year he purchased 220 acres from Joseph Frey. Mary Tidwell
must have died in 175k, however. She had signed the papers for the
zale of property in 1753 but suddenly in Jamuary 1755 William scld off
the 220 acres bdought the year before. HNe sold 100 acres back to
Joseph Freyand the remainder to Martin Black. Mary T:dwell did
not sign these papers. This is the last record of William Tidwell
in Virginia. Itm@twubettntmthgduthcfmvﬂehe
decided to sell out and start fresh in same other part of the country.

In 1754, however, wvar hed broken out between the British and
the French and Yndians. In 1755 General Braddocks's army was
defeated and the frontier settlements were exposed to hesvy Indian
attack. In 1756 two large raiding parties entered Frederick County.
Winchester was attacked but managed to beat off the Indians. There
128 considersble damage and loss of life in the Courty and rany of
the settlers moved back to the more settled country east of the Dlue
Ridge. ‘Ihe'l’idweﬁ.smyhavelzrtthecminmgmenlexodm,

altbough there is samwe evidence to suggest that some were east of the

cuntaine before that date.




In 1753, Francis Tidvell vitnessed a deed for John Frogg, Gentlemen,
of Prince William County. Frogg lived in the part of Prince William
that was.later split off to become Fauquier County. Although John
Tidvell received a grant of land in Frederick Coumty im 1T5%, in
February 1756, he was swarded a Judgment sgainst Benjamin Taylor
and John Frogg in the Prince William County Court. The family may well
bave retained property in Prince Willimm County, therefaore, to which
they returned vhen misfortune hit them in the Shenandceh vallswy.
m@x_mmmmmmnnmcmmmn
accounts for the lack of definite information om this part.

It might well be that Richard Tidwell (ITI) retained the family
property in Prince William Co., and William took over that in Frederick
Co. This might well account for the absence of any other record of
Richard in Virginia after 17hk. There is no indicaticn that he
settled any place else until much later when he and his brothers
appeared in South Carolina. )




The South Carolina Tidwells

In 1763, the war against the French and Indians ended
successfully, and people once more flocked to the frontier. The
first area to be opened %o heavy szttlement was the upland country of
Sath&olim. In e mtter of & fev years large mmbers of people
moved from the Sherandoah Valley and the Piedmont of Virginia inmto
thenevhndafSarth&folim. They were largely people who had
fallen into debt with the merchants or people who had suffered
from the Indian attacks and wanted to get farther svay from the
northern frootier. Also the piedmont country was bdegimning to fall
into the bhands of the larger landoweers, who with slave lsbor, wvere
affering a competition that the smaller land owners could not match.
Hov the nev country in South Carclina was offering them opportunity
to start once more on equal terms with Fortume.

The first record of the Tidwell family in South Carolima is a
grant of 100 acres of land to Richard Tidwell (III) which was surveyed on
April 7, 1763. The normal procedure was for the settler to locate om
the property desired, them have a survey made, and then apply for the
Grant. Therefore, Richard must have been in South Carolina some
veeks or months, at least, before this date. Ee would have been
about 53 years old at this time.

The land was located on Waterse Creek in Fairfield Counmty,
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South Carolina. The survey shows that the iand lay next to property
owmed by Joseph Helms. The association of Richard Ticdwell and Joseph
Jelms haé already lasted over thirty years end had survived the

move fron Virginis to South Carolina.

Richerd Pidwell (iYI) was the first of s whole cluster of
Tiduellis. 11 of his brotaers and their sons deserted Virginie
;ithin 2 shcri space of time. William and Francis Tidwell also tock
up lend grants in South Carolina ard the. young men of the next
Ggeneraticn, now rcechirng maturity, also tock up land. John Tidwell
dces not sesm to have reached Soutn Caroline and the Census of 1790
adhnwe & Tidwell vidow and 3 young aan named Samuel Tidwell living in
licore County, North Carolinme. This mey mark the location where Jahn
Tilrell settled. but the records of the County were burned during the
:0th century end since Samuel Tidwell seems -0 have had only daughteirs
there is mo other trace of this smll group of Tidwells.

Among the South Carolina Tidwells the young men appeared in suck
nurpers ard raised such large families of their own that it is
Cifficult to establish their exect relationships. The frontier county
k2é no marriage records, few family bibles carry family records that
far ceek, anﬁ we éré rrimarily dependent on land records, the census
racords of 1750, 1800, etc., and & few wills and administrations
»'Cr the date with which to recomstruct the famiiy commections. In a

2 caces the records are axplicit. In most cases, however, the main
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evidence is approximate age, geographic proximity, and associstion
in the records { & =on witnessing a sigme’ure for his father, for
example). In same cases this indirect evidence is consistenmt end
impressive. In other cases it is ambigucus and doubtful. In & few
cases there is almost no evidence at all.

In general the family seems to have broken into twvo major
groups. The sons of Richard and Francis Tidwell formed a fairly close
association that lasted in scme cases well into the 19th century.
William Tidwell and his sons seem to bhave had relatively little contact
vith the other. The revoluticmary records of Geogria may give some '
clue in this matter. An entry® dated August 1, 1783, says:

"William Tidwell, setting forth the extreme hardships endured by
himself (ard his family) having his land end otker property sold
under the Act of Secuestration with his old age and infirmities,
ard e large family of emall children and Praying that the said property
be ordered to be restared him and he be allowed to reside thereon.
'heCcsnitteeareéftheapinionthatfherwuthenotou@ttobe
granted which vas agreed to."

This recard indicates that William had been a loyalist during
the Revolution and that his property had been confiscated. It will

be recalled that he had been a neighbor of lord Fairfax in Virginis

+ Vol. ifI, p. 411.
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records of the Revolution and I have had an official search made in the
fomnd no record of any Tidwell who served as an officer im the
Revolution. mmm@m,mwnmm
Bimmd end Peter Tidwell whose recard is discussed lster. Francis
Marion's band was cuite samll, only about 30 st one time. Under the
circusstances I can only conclmde that the officer Pidwells were
fignents of scmebody's imagination.




that he had held on appointment as overseer of a road, and that
there may have been scme cammection between his father and the
Proprieters of the Northern Neck. This association with the
mwmw&m&mwmmgmm.
conservative bias against the ides of revolution. His loyalist
sentiment may have accounted for same of the lack of contact with
the families of Richard and Francis, but there must have been other
The Tidwells can not be said to bave deen enthusiastic supporters
of the revolution. Variocus branches of the family have retained stories
of ancestral patriotism and same have claimed descent fram officers
who seived under Francis Marion and Col. Winn, the founder of
winn sboro, Socuth Caroclina, but these stories and claims may be based
on a éssire to correct ancestral mistakes rather than on facts.®# Tkere
msbitterfi@:tingmlndmrSaﬂthmdrgtheBevolution
and there wvere several Tidvells of an age tc take perv in it, but ibhe
only firm record that I have seen is for two who spent a short time
in the Militia in 1782, after Yorktown and after the sericus fighting

was agver.
The upland ares of South Carclina was an area of particularly

# See cpposite page.




strong loyalist sentiment. As late in the war as 17680, the British
and Paries vere in almost complete control of the area. They were
f£inally defeated locally omly by bringing in revolutionary troope
from Virginia, North Carolins snd Maryland to help the remmant of
anti-crow\ forces in South Carolina. By the end of )T82, however,
the British had withdravn from Charleston apd Ssvarmah and tae var
in the south was over for all practical purposes. The loyalist
sentiments of William Tidvell were therefore not likely the only
cause o the scant contact between the two parts of the family.
Geography may have been the main factor.

In the preceding chapter it was mentiocned that William Tidwell's
first wife may have died about 1TS4. lhw'fecord cuoted above
suggesis that he had married a second time, and the approximate age
of the men who seem to have been his sons tends to confirm the idea of
two marriages and two sets of children. In the first group would fall
Petar azd Robert Tidwell, both born sametime around 1750 amd in the
second group would fall Job, Absolum, William and John, all probably
born between 1765 and 1775. These last, therefore, would heve been
children during the revolution. It is necessary to point out again.
however, that these relationships are inferred rather than firmly
csteblished. The main supporting evidence is a fairly constant
ess~riation among these men that survived a large scale migration
from Scuth Carolina to Georgia.

Wil'iam Tidvell may well have returned to South Carolina when

1.lg drogerty was confiscated in Georgia since his sons appear to have
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grown up in South Carclina and most did not return to Geargia
until after 1790.

Richard (ITI) and Francis Tidwell and their sons Richard (IV)
Presslot, Robert, Edmond, and John settled in a fairly small ares
near Wateree Creek in the Fairfield District of Scuth Carolima.
The records of this group are largely at Wimnmsboro, the County Seat
of Fairfield County. The only proven relationships are those
between Richard (III) and Richard IV and between Francis and his son
John. There is some reeson to believe, however, that the others
were sons of Richard (III). It can be seen from their names that
corfusion was beginning to creep into the family at this point since
William also seems to have had sons named Robert and John. The
Census of 1790 lists both Roberts and calls one of them Robert
T:dwell Jr, but this did not necessarily mear that they wvere
father and son. There are ample occasions in the old records when
the term merely distinguished a younger man from an elder of
the same name. In eny case the Census indicetes that they were about
the same age and could not have been fether and son.

The only definite birth date for any of these men is fram a
family bible that gives Edmund Tidwells' birth year as 1758. The
others appear to have been born sametime after 1740 but before 1755.

The status of the Tidwell family in South Carolina was uite
different from that of Richard Tidwell (II). ' Where he had bought

e2d sold land in Virginia in 200 and 500 acre lots, there sons and
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grandsons dealt in parcels of 50, 100 and 15C acres. Few, if any,
of them could sign their own names. They were no longer plagued BTy
debts to the merchants and the occasional mortgege was paid cff ino
3ue course, but they were now typical yeumen, farmers in frortier
country--conservative, uneducated and prolific.
In 1782 Peter Tidwell of the William Tidwell group and

Edmund Tidwell of the Richard and Francis Tidwell group served shor:
terms in the South Carolina Militia. Peter served for one mcnth
and Edmund for four. Edmmd was 24 years old and already a fathe:.
Z do not know Peter's age but he wvas probably somewhet older
and also the fatker of a family. It was not an ideal time fram the
family standpoint for them to be on active service. Their motive
?or waiting until this late date to serve will prodably never be
ipown, but it is difficult to avoid the suspicion that they had
read the trend of the times and were recording their adherenc2 to
the winning side.

Edrund Tidwell served in a unit commanded by Lt. Johu
Hollis. This is the first irdication of a connection with the Holl:s
family that proved later to be a strong and lasting cne. Moses
Hollis was a typical successful farmer in the Fairfield district.

When he died in 1794 Edmmd Tidwell helped in the settlement o his
estate. The signature of Edmund and Moses Hollis Jr. were also 2csocieted

in various other legal documents. Two of Edmunds grandsons were ramed
Moses and one great grandson was named M-oses Hollis Tidwell. There
is no indication concerning the nature of the comnection between the

Tidwells and the Hollis family, but it may well be that Edmund h=d
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married s daughter of Moses Hollis.
Jean Hollis, a daughter of Moses Hollis, married amother Tidwell,

possibly a son of Presslot Tidwell, and beceme the mother of
Sterling end Garland Tidwell. This is the only certain family
connection between the Hollises and the Tidwells, but the
relationship of the families was 8o close that there were probably
other ties as well.

Rickurd III, Francis and William Tidwell all scem to have
died before 1750, the first two probebly shortly after 1T7S.

When the first census was taken in 1790 however, there were 51
male Tidwells alive in South Carolima. OCnly 17 of these were over
15, but the Census mey have missed one or two additionzl adults.
Peter Tidwell, for example, does not appear although he had been
in South Carolina as late as 1783 and was in Georgla shortly efter
1790.

After 1790 there were two major wares of migration of the
Tidwells from South Car lina. Pirst was the move to Georgia
vhich involved Peter, Job, Absolum, David, John, and two William
Tidwells. These were probably all sons or grandsons of William
Tidwell. At some point before 1800, Robert Tidwell of this eame

oup cither died or migrated. If it Was the latter I bave not

q

discovered where he went.
Tre second move of migration began shortly after 1800 when
members of the Francis and Richard Tidwell group began to move into

Tenessee. The main focal point for this group was Dickson County,




about 40 miles west of Hashvilie.

Richard Tidwell IV had died about 1789, Presslot Tidwell died
in 1790 and Robert Tidwell died im 1806. These deaths seem to have
left Bimund Tidwell as the senior descendart of Richard Tidwell IIT.
John Pidwell, som of Pruncis Tidwell may also bhave been dead by
1800, but it is difficult to determine because of the existence
of several J-hn Tidwells by this time. In any case Edmund seems
to have been the man who acted as executor of estates, signer of
bonds, and wvitness for signatures for the remainder of the farily.

By 1808, Eli Tidwell, son of Jcohn Tidwell and grandson of
Francis Tidwell had moved to Dickson County. Sametime between 1810
and 1812 Edmmd followed with his six sons, with six of Robert
Tidwells' seven sons, at least one of Robert's son-in-laws and a
orother of Eii Tidwell. Edmnds youngest son, Aquilla, and
Robert's two youngest sons, Robert and Bot:t (or Notley) servad
in the Tenessee Militia in 1814. Bott must bhave returned to South
C?:L'olina almost immedistely after his service since he died there in
1815. The pacification of the Indians seems to have opened new
opportunities in the south and sometime befare 1820 the brothers
Eli and Isasc and the young Robert Tidwell moved to Giles County
in southern Tennessee, although Eli retained property in Dickson
County until 1841. Two other sons of the elder Robert Tidwell,
Richard and John, left Dickson County and moved into Maury County

Tennessee about the same time.




These two migrations, to Georgia and to Temnessee left few
T4dwells in South Carolina. Levi, the remaining som of Robert
ﬂm,mmﬁmmmmm The brothers,
Sterling and Garland Tidwell and two Johm Tidwells also stayed
belrind. These men may bave been descendants of Presslot Tidwell.

The two migrations, and their coincidence with an apparent
division in the family may well account for the family legend,
pentioned in the fareword, concerning the "Red” and the "Black”
Tidvells. Gbvicusly the legendary”Red” and "Black” brothers
are a little too neat to fit the facts, since the "Red” half would
bave to include both Richard (III) and Prancis Tidwell, but the

broad outline appears to be correct.
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The Tennessee Tidwells

The Tidwell family in Temnnessee settled in three main centers.
These were Dickson County, the first locus of settlement, Giles
County, vhere Eli, Isaac, and Robert Tidwell moved from Dickson
County, anc Warren County, farther to the east, where Reuben
Tidwvell and his sons settled when they left tidewater Virginia
in 1812. Although pearly one hundred years had passed since
the families of Richard Tidwell (II) and his brother Robert hed beer
closely associated, descendants of both were now living once more
in the same state and experiencing the same econamic and social
influences.

Within & few years members of each family group began to
move into surrounding counties, just as Richard and J hn Tidwell
moved into Meury County, to the south of Dickson Coumty. later
members of these groups joined longer migrations, to Alabama, <o
Mississippi, to I1linois, and o Texas, but elements of the three
groups still remain as part of the original population of Tennessee.

The great majority of the Tidwells remained as farmers during tke
19th century. Usually the successful ones achieved the status
of a successful yeaman farmer. Rarely if ever did they break througa
into the new class of southern aristocracy that came into being
in the first half of the century. At the other end of the scale
they fre\,ﬁently dr:l.fted‘ along as poor farmers or laborers, living

oz hardly more than a subsistance basis. Whepm the did manage
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to break away from the farms it was fre uently as a country
preacher or small town store keeper. Occasiomally, however,
a doctor, lavyer, or teaéher appeared.

As Ten essee became more settled the frontier left the
Tidwells behind. As nev lands to the south and west opened
up a fev usually moved at each fresh opportunity, but these moves
vere usually well after the frontier had been cleared of Indians
and opened to peaceful settlement. The Mexican War did not affect
the great majority of the Tidwells although one or two bhad
already reached Texas. Ir general, the Tidwells remained rural,
uneducated, and untouched by great events.

There was a reserve of useful talent and ability in the
Tamily, however, that came to light briefly in the Civil War.
Members of nearly every group of Tidwell families served in the
Confederate Army. Most vere privates, but a good number became
cammissioned and non-cammissioned officers. This demonstration

of responsibility and leadership was cut short by the defeat of

the Confederacy. Many who had been moderately prosperous lost slaves,

crops, #2nd horses. Crportunities were fewer and there was no great
stimulating influence, only hard work to support growing families
on land that could not produce enough.

The effects of defeat rested heavily on the rural south.
Not until the 20th century did the Tidwell family begin to

oreak away from subsistence farming in large mumbers.
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After Eli Tidvell and his sons, and various sons of Robert
:tidvel?! had moved out of Dickson County, the remaining family
5rdup wvas composed largely of Edmund Tidwell and his soms.

The only ot 'ers were James Tidwell ard Robert Tidwell's sons-
in-1avw. Isaiah Tidwell, Edmumds cldest son was barn in 1781,
and the younger bays vere already nearly grown when the family
moved to Tennessee. A.uilla Tidwell, for example, served in the
Tennessee militia in 1814 at the age of 19. Edmumnd's sons were
already adding to the Tidwell family therefore at the time

of migration and the numbers increased rapidly thereafter.

Isaish had nine daughters but no soms. His girls, however,
kept the marriage records full for years.

Benjamin Tidwell, the next son, had at least one son, Moses
Jarvey Tidwell. Edmund Tidwell Jr., had seven sons and four
laughters, Malachi, Marcel, Moses, Michael, Clark,

Mouncy, Mahala, Jincy, Tursey (Theresa?), Mansel, and Jchn B.
Tiduell. There is no apparent explanation for the curious liking
for nemes beginning with the letter M nor for the lapses from the
habit of choosing such names.

Silas and A uilla Tidwell, the next sons of the elder
Edmund seem to have had no children, at least none that survived
to maturity. John B. Tidwell, the youngest son, however, had four
sons and two daughters, Jack, Annie, Peggy, Andrew, A uilla, and

“dmund. In all therefore, there were at least 27 grandchildren to
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the elder Bdmmd Tidwell and 12 of these were boys to carry on the
family name.

The younger Edmund, bornm in 1787, outlived his brothers and many
of his children and finally died in 1869 at the age of 82. He
seems to bave inherited his father's role as family leader and
elder statesman. Until the Civil War, be was a successful farmer,
owning considerable property, slaves, horses, and cattle. He wes
well liked and a leader in the commnity with a joke and a nick-pame
for everybody. Even after the War he managed to retain enocugk property
to continue to help his less fortumate neighbors. One of his
grand-children recalled seeing him, aged nearly eighty, riding
off with a side of bacon tied to his saddle to visit a neighbor
who was in difficulties. Even facing death he remembered family
responsibility because he willed that a plot of ground be set
aside as a family burial ground. This little cemetary still
exists near Burns, Temmessee and is known locally as the Hogar
turying ground, one of the younger Tidwells having married a
Hogan.

Ic his old age, Edmund Tidwell had especially heavy family
responsibilities added to the havoc of war. His oldest son Malachi,
and one of his youngest sons, Mamsel, both died in 1865.

The latter left a family of seven sons and four daughters.
The oldest, Eliza Jane, was only 20 and the oldest boy, Williem

Fdmund, was coly 17. Six of the children were under 10. Msasel




hadaclay-hillfarnwithatvoltorylogho\me,wherehilfa.ily

continued to live, but Edemund at 78 was the protector and head of
the family. His dea.ﬁh1n1869, left this femily in even wvorse
straits. ‘Iheprcperty‘tmthehdmtninedm spread among 80
many heirs At few recaived mch benefit from it.

Mensel's farm had been modest but adequate to provide for his
family. In 1864, however, a foraging party from the Union Army
of the Tennessee psaéd through Dickson County. In the course aof
their foraging they stopped at Msnsel's farm vhere they made
Mapsel's wife and daughters cook a meal for them and while this
vas being prepared they hitcheld Mansel's horses to the wagon,
?illed the wagon with corn, killed the chicken and geese and
threw them on top of the corn. They ate their meal and drove off
with a large part of the property that Mmsel had accumulated with
his life's work. The only farm animal of value that was
saved vas a stallion that the family had managed to hide in the
wvoods. This loss was a dreadful set-back to the family, compounded
by Mansel's death the following year.

Mensel's brother Moses was a vigorous and responsible man who
could act as femily coumnsellor but he too had a large family to
care for. In 1872, he died at the age of sixty. In the short
space of seven years, Marsel's children lost father, grandfather,
ard Cncle. These misfortunes, plus the depressed condition
cf tce econamy and the marginal value of the land in Dickson

County, caused the young Tidwells to grow up in the most meager




circumstances. Kone of the boys had more than a year or two
of schooling and all of them wemt to wark in the fields as soon
as they vere big enough to hold a hoe.

Without schoaling and without opportunity or outside
stimlus, the ugys tried tn make a living and to live in the
only vay they knew hov, by wringing their food from the poor
ground. They gev up and married and tried to go on as always.

Finally in 1886, two of Mansel's younger sons, Moctgomery
and Jemes Madison Tidwell left for Texas. James Madison, or Matt
as he wvas called, had a vife and two children when he arrived
in Texas, but as he said afterwvards he had nothing else except
"strength and avkwardness.” He went to work cutting cedar posts
from the banks of the Brozos river for fifty cents a day in
order to feed his family.
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The Texas Tidwells

Many Tidwells from various branches of the family settled
in Texas during the nineteenth. century. In same cases brothers,
cousins and nephevs made the migration along with neighbors from
the home country. Most of the Tidwells, however, wvere from
widely scattered branches of the family that had long since lost
touch with each other and when they met or heard of one another
they no longer knew that they sprang from a common American
ancestaor. |

David J. Tidwell, a son of Isaac Tidwell, left Giles
Co., Tenn. about 1832 and settled in Mississippi after spending
a short time in Alabama. He became a Methodist minister and
in 1848 left for Texas where he lived Jirst ianerokeeCmmty
and iater in Limestone County. In 1875, his san John Wesley
Tidvell moved to Bos ue Coumty in central Texas.

About this time Jack Tidwell, son of John Tidwell and
grardson of the elder Edmund Tidwell moved to Bos:ue County
Texas fram Dickson County, Temn. He later moved to Hood County
Texas end there is no indication that he was ever in contact with
John Wesley Tidwell.

Another branch of the Giles County Tidwells came to Texas
in the form of Josiah Blake Tidwell, a Baptist minister who

¥as £ great-grandson of the younger Robert Tidwell. His grand-
father hed moved fram Giles County, Tenn. to Alabame in the early
19th Century and they too had lost touch with the other T™dwells

vko moved to Texas. Josiah Blake Tidwell became famocus among
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hﬁtuu in the South and fimally became Professor of Bible'
at Baylor University in Texas.

The s .ories of the broad plsins of Texas were listened to
eagerly in the vorn out hills of Tennessee. Finally vithin & feuw
years a large grour of ueighbors and relatives moved to B s ue
County. The group included Bob and Jimroe Johnson, Joady
Yates, the Marsh and Holt families, and Montgomery and James
M.dison ™Mdwell. Many of these families were related by marriage.
Bot all of the emigrants stayed. Montgomery Tidwell returned
to Tennessee, but other relatives came to Texas from time to time.
James Madison Tidwell's nephew, Emery Tidwell, lived there for
a vhile and then moved on to California.

These settlers from Tennessee were unlettered people who
had been raised close to nature. Stories, sayings, and songs wverc
based on themes from the wilderness.

"Possum up a Gum stump,
Coony irn a holler,
Scuirrel up a grape vine
Fat as he could waller."

This was one of the songs James Madison Tidwell brought frox
Temmessee along vith "Froggie went a courtir' " and “Great Big
Taters in the Sanéy Rand."

James Madison or Matt Tidwell, as he was more commonly

imcwn, was a big man with a ruddy complexion and light reddish
brown hair, blue eyes and an op=n face that smiled easily. He
liked Jokcé and had a nick-name for everybody. He wes

thrifty and hard vorking, but» he liked fun ard f-fends. If a friernd

disappointed him, however, he dropped him "like a hot r~ake."
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He had a common sense that made him judge people on the basis - .
of their actions rather than their talk, and truth and sineerity
vere far more important to him than more pretenticus (uslities. He
had brothers who were very religious but he himself ridiculedk
the country preachers that governed the religions life of the
pew country. Be said that "the plow handles had made a lot- of
preachers.” A man who vorked hard, payed his own way ami kept
his word was his ideal. He applied these same standards to
hischi.ldrenuhoregardedhinuhudhr_tfair. The years-
fram 1826 to 1888 were terribly dry years and day labor was the
only way to make a living. ILater James Madison Tidwell .

rented some land and began farming. He used a double ahovel plow
for the first time in Texas.

He moved several times from farm to farm scmetimes in
Bog:ue County and sometimes across the Brozos river in HI1ll1
County. The town of Whitney in Hill County was the focal
roint of these moves. When he first went to Texas it was & wild
village pear the Chisholm Trail. The county turned more and more
to cotton farming however, and the great herds were no longer
driver up the Trail. Whitney had a cotton Gin and became
3 typical country town where the sun glared on unshaded streets
and buildings and the earth wes usually red dust but scmetimes
turded into foot deep mud thet shut the town off from ail

outside commnication.
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James Madison Tidwell was finally able to buy a farm and to
raise ten children. Although they were raised on meager
circumstances and bard vork they had more schooling than their
father, were heslthy, ard the horizons of oppartunity were
broader in Texas than in Temnessee. As the rapid economic an’
sccial changes of the twentieth century began they were in a
position to move off in many different ways of life. They were
no longer limited to the plow and the hoe as their ancestors
bad been for generations before.

The eldest son, Wade Hampton Tidwell, stayed on in Hill
County as e farwer, but the younger sons scattered. Hugh
served in the Infantry during World War I, was captured by the
Germans, and later worked for the Houston Texas post affice. Fred
served in the Marines during the War and like James Madison Jr..
ené Bailey Tidwell held various Jjobs in the smell business wor i of
Texas. William Albert, or Jumbo Tidwell, the second sldest sor.
vorked on the farm until he was 21 and them in 1909 got a job
&8s assistant county clerk in the court house at Hillsboro, the
Ccunty seat. Like his father in appearance a2nd character he make
8 good impres8ion on the successful town's people and became a
teller in the leading Bank. In 1914 he married Louise Caperton. the
niece ard wvard of Herman Eastland who owned a Title and Abstract
Compeny in mbm. Woods Caperton, his wife's elder brother,

becere sales manager of the Eli Lilly Company of Indianapolis and




began another family migrations, typical «f the many migratiows
of family groups that had taken place throughout the history xf the

Tidwell family in America. Within a few years, Woods {8pertoa's
brothers Joe and Eastland Caperton moved to Indianapolis. In
1918, William Albert and Louise Tidwell joined them and a few
years later William Davis Eastland, an Uncle of the Gapertoms,
:ame as vell. The main motive for these moves was the great
jifference in economic opportunity betweea Indiana and Te:as.
‘(he north wvas busy, wvealthy, and wvide awake. Texas was still
{mping along in tre aftermath of the Civil War, short oa capitel,
and settled in the ruts of obsolescent custam and method.

In Indiana William Albert Tidwell became cashier aof a
small bank and iater went into the Life Insurance busizess. His
love of the of the country and his familiarity with farm life
made him particularly successful at dealing with country peo:le
a.ndheb\ultupavidecimleoffriendacnthefam@inthe
small towns in central and northern Indiana. After his dsath ic
.95’ a business associate wrote:
"You just didn't have to wonder about his position on

¢~y matter. He stated it frankly and directly to the party
concerned....He dealt that openly and frankly and was accepted
as the right kind of individual by all vho knew him. His regarc
for an individual wes his integrity and not the position he
held. The youngest clerk in an office was as good as the president

cf the company as far as he was concerned."”




Be 1iked pecple and enjayed life. He 1iked to joke; tou.
work in the gardem, to cook yies for which he became famous. He «:;
tried his hand st painting landscapes and when, on rarss
occasions, he tried to express his ideas in writing, he-wyote- -
vith a vigorous and straightforward style. In the space.of hix :
1ifetime he bridged the gap between the poverty and struggle
of a Texas cotton farm in the 19th century and the growtix.
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and action of the successful business world of the 20th .
certm'y.'
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The Illinois Tidwells

Although many pecple moved from South Carolina into Kemtucky,
Indiana, and I1linois in the early 19th Century (for example
the Lincoln family) the main migration of Tidwells into Illinois
did mot take place until much later. There is a record of a Hiram
Tidwell in the Illinois Militia in 1812 and Absolum Tidwell
lived irn Randolph County, Indiana, near the Chio border fram
1804 to 1808 but these men did not settle permanently in the
region.

It will be recalled that Eli Tidwell left South Carolina
end settled first in Dickson Ccunty and later in Giles County
Tennessee. Eli married a voman named Mary Dore wvho was several
years older than he. According to family tradition she married
first an older brother of Eli. He was killed while sway from
home during the revolution. During this absence she had made
him a suit of clothes, and this suit was saved by her
cescendents. A button from this suit is still in the possession
of Mrs. Ethel Tidwell Holland. After her first hmsband's death
she married Eli Tidwell. Among their children wvas Elias
Tidwell, bora in 1792 who became a Methodist circuit rider. 3IHe
had at least two children, Mary C. Tidwell, born in 1814 who
merried a man pamed Hadden and eventually settled in Kaufman County,
Texas, and Eldridge Solon Tidwell bora in 1821 who became a
Dceter and settled in McRairy County, Tennessee. His son John

Fletcher Tidwell borm in 1341 also became a Doctor, but he
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remained loyal to the Union during the Civil War and moved

%o Il1linois because of this sentiment. e married in Illinocis and
had ten children. Four sons reached maturity; 8imon Lindorf,
Woody Rudolph, William Flint, and Eliridge Sammel Tidvell.
William Flint Tidwell also became a Doctor. The next generation
also included a mumber of Doctors and Moody Rudolph Tidwell Jr.,
became & Brigadier General in the US Army.

Just as Eli Tidwell was the first to leave South Carolina
his branch of the family was the first to break ocut of the
traditicnal framework of the rural south and provide its
nembers with an opportunity to exercise their capabilities to
the fuli.
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